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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

the sales of goods, concessionaire sales, rental income from
operating leases and management service fee income charged
to customers, net of value added tax or other sales tax and

discounts.

(2)  Same store sales growth represents change in the total gross (2)
revenue for department stores having operations throughout the

comparable period.

(3) Area efficiency represents gross revenue per department store (3)

annual average operating area.
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2011 2010 Changes
HK$million HK$million
—g—— —E—TiF 28
BEETR BEATT
Gross revenue " 4,730.9 2,601.9 +82%
R
Same store sales growth @ 37% 27% +10%
A& 5 & 1 =@
Turnover 1,291.5 698.9 +85%
EER
EBITDA 311.3 162.2 +92%
BT & K 3 A A
EBIT (Profit from operations) 249.7 133.7 +87%
HERIFE (KL HEMN)
Profit for the year 250.9 119.7 +110%
NEZ A
Profit attributable to equity holders 215.2 74.5 +189%
N A ARER E A 4 A
Basic earnings per share 8.28 cents{l 4.32 centsflll +92%
BRRE % A
Net assets ofjhe Group 1,458.2 405.5 +260%
REBEEFE
NAV per share 0.34 dollarit 0.18 dollaryt +89%
BREEFE
Net cash generated from operations 371.1 196.5 +89%
FREEZREFHE
Area efficiency (per m?) @ 44,800 dollarsjt 47,600 dollarsit -6%
S (FF oK)
Notes: Ff ot
(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from (1) HWHEEERR FrEEHE &2

HEZ S WA R AP WE & IR
BEWAZEE (MREERAEMBEE
WEITE) °

FlESHERREERR L RRGEL S
MBEEEBKEmEE-

FREAEERABERS2F RS
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Five Years Summary Financial Information (2007 - 2011)

FIFHRERNBE(ZZEZLFEF——F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&L £51)

RESULTS
£

Turnover
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) attributable
to equity shareholders
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

EE3
—REGEXK
—RIEBEXHK

REEEER/
(B#E)
~HEERLT
—Zﬁ'(”:ﬁ«( %iﬁl

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERERE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
DEDUCT:
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET CURRENT
(LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

DEDUCT:

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

FROAE
BAE
i
B8

7B (A1)
BEFE

BEERRDAE

X
FRDEE

EEFE

TE——F 1t A=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t+-HL%FE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F “E-%F “EENE “EENF “EEF
TERT TET FET TEx TET
1,291,479 698,860 548,052 285,973 115,656
1,291,479 698,860 548,052 285,973 115,656
215,150 74,479 10,168 (361,267) 5,330
215,150 74,479 10,168 (361,267) 5,330
As at 31 December
R+t=A=1+-H

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E--% ZE-%F “Z2TNE ZZTN\F S d
TER TET TER TAR FET
4,041,409 3,190,826 2,183,133 2,068,531 106,574
1,083,542 315,581 197,130 204,022 354,986
1,910,105 1,412,705 1,244,288 1,257,533 103,719
(826,563) (1,097,124 (1,047,158 (1,053,511) 251,267
3,214,846 2,093,702 1,135,975 1,015,020 357,841
1,756,600 1,688,233 895,219 824,083 -

1,458,246 405,469 240,756 190,937 357,84
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ETEHE

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011 (“the year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’'s core business locates in the northwestern
region of China where it operates eight mid-high end chain
department stores and six supermarkets. The store GFA is
approximately 300,000 square meters (3,200,000 square feet),
including approximately 160,000 square meters (1,700,000
square feet) are self-owned properties.

2011 is a year full of opportunities and challenges. During
the year, we have acquired two department stores, five
supermarkets and three quality commercial properties, all of
which successfully integrated in to our business. The Group
continued to enjoy rapid growth in business, profits and
operational expansion in 2011.

The cooperation between the Group and Hony Capital, our
long-term strategic investor as well as our second largest
shareholder, has tightened. During the year, Hony Capital not
only invested HK$443.5 million into the Group to subscribe
additional convertible bonds and provide further funding of
approximately HK$420 million to acquire one of our flagship
store property, but also unconditionally waived all the future
interest of the Company’s convertible bonds it is holding.
Coupon rate has been adjusted from 3% to zero to help the
company save up over a hundred million dollars in interest
expenses and to increase financial abundance to strengthen
the Group’s business foundation.

Annual Report 2011
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CORPORATE AWARDS

In November 2011, the Company was selected as a constituent
stock of Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China
Indices under the MSCI Global Small Cap Indices. The Board
believes that the inclusion will further enhance the recognition
the Company obtained in the international capital market for
outstanding investment potential and business performance.

In 2011, Century Ginwa obtained accolades and awards from
business side include “National Top 10 Aftersales Service
Unit”, “National Advanced Enterprise in Commercial Quality
Management”, “Outstanding Private Enterprise of Shaanxi”,
“Famous Brand in Xi‘an Servicing Industry” and “Top 10
Enterprises of Promoting Domestic Consumption in Xi'an"”, etc.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

In February 2012, the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China officially adopted the “12th Five-Year Plan for the Large-
Scale Development of the Western Regions” formulated by
National Development and Reform Commission. This implies
that in the next few years, the northwestern region where
Century Ginwa operates will be the most preferred center
of development, driving The Grand Western Development
Program to advance to a new level and to achieve a higher
growth rate in gross domestic product and residents’ income
than national average levels. The northwestern region’s
economy will grow faster than coastal provinces, and the
consumption power and aesthetics of the local residents will
keep improving as well.

Regarding sectoral policies, Ministry of Commerce of China
released the “Guiding Opinions on Promoting Development
of Retail Trade During 12th Five-Year Plan”, estimating the
target for the turnover of the entire retail sector to grow at
15% annually during the 12th Five-Year period, and create
additional employment opportunities through stimulating
domestic consumption. We believe more favorable policies
will be in place to booster the retail industry in northwestern
region.

As the leader of mid-high end chain department store
operators in the northwestern region, Century Ginwa will
grasp strategic opportunities to strengthen current competitive
advantages, as well as further expanding the retail network
and seeking acquisition opportunities in the region like
Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Ningxia and Inner Mongolia, etc., so as
to increase the scale of our business and corporate brand
awareness.

RRE
R-TE——F+—F AREIEERLH
FEARBEER (MSCI) # A B JE TR IR/NEL
BIEH R 2 HEESBROE -EFER
RUEIR AR R RN AR £ R E B R
TR SE - HREABREARATSY
RAEHRE BN NEHRIROBR -

R-E——F HLRSECEZETHAR
ZEREIRI2HERRBITETEE
] TeEmXEae@ e ESEMm] (B
AEEFRELE]  [BARRGEERE] &
[(AZTHARTRBEETELR] F-

ARFERRE

2"/ PERABKRERENTE
RERZmAIN (A ARE [+ =« 7]
MED) cEBWRE  RARRBFHRE -
et ENTEItBzRAEREE N
B YERNRELENLE HBHEHAGH
BER-EF e RERLEREEREN
BERBAZRBBEZEFIEKFHER-
it EMGEEREBE R0 &
= R Y= 58 B RE 0 M K S T ET IR
o

RIBF - fE1T SRR 7 | - 7 B 78 75 & I 3%
7t e A RETEXRREER
RY RBERI+Z R M e HE
T E R IMERT R O15%MNFHE
R RASBERBEE NBAFEES
ERE - BMEEMNFEILBEETE
MBRGEELS -

42 S EME R T AL BB R 7 5 K 8L 3 3
BERESCEBRLE  SNERE FER
BB S EB AN EE - npRrE -
Mg EERARGSM E—TIHRTE
BEBKRLDEeRBRE ARAREN
RERmEANEE -
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Currently, the Group is considering the acquisition of 3 large
scale developed or developing commercial centers in Xi'an
of Shaanxi, Urumgqi of Xinjiang and Yinchuan of Ningxia,
each of which has a GFA of approximately 100,000 square
meters. These are potential acquisition opportunities for the
Group. Nevertheless, the plans are still in very preliminary
stage and the Group will disclose more details concerning the
acquisitions when materialized.

In the future, the Board will consider declaring dividends
whenever condition permits in an aim to increase the return to
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNwR DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the restructuring of the Group's core
business has begun to produce results and attained strong
performance. The Group achieved continual rapid business
growth.

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vii)

The gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 increased to HK$4,730.9 million as
compared to HK$2,601.9 million for the same period
last year, representing an increase of 82%. The increase
in gross revenue was mainly due to increase in same
store sales, full year effect of 2010 acquired stores and
newly acquired stores in 2011.

In the current year, same store sales growth was 37%
(2010: 27%).

Area efficiency (gross revenue per department
store annual average operating area) for 2011
was HK$44,800 per square meter as compared to
HK$47,600 per square meter for the same period last
year, representing a decrease of 6%, which was mainly
due to the lower rate of newly acquired stores.

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 increased to HK$1,291.5 million as
compared to HK$698.9 million for the same period last
year, representing an increase of 85%.

The Group’'s operating profit (EBIT) for 2011 was
HK$249.7 million, increased by 87% from HK$133.7
million for 2010. The operating profit margin (EBIT
divided by gross sales) increased from 5.14% to 5.28%.

The financial income in 2011 was HK$67.5 million
(2010: HK$34.5 million). The increase in financial
income was mainly due to a gain of HK$205.9 million
arising from change in fair value of the convertible
bonds recorded in 2011 (2010: HK$34.3 million).

The Group’s profit for the year and consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
were HK$250.9 million (2010: HK$119.7 million) and
HK$215.2 million (2010: HK$74.5 million) respectively.

R E S

WA - AR B R B R
FRRY ARERBREFADRER -

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vii)

rEBEBHE-_Z——F+ A
=t+—HALEFEZRRZ®EMNE
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(viii)  The Group's net cash generatal from operations for
2011 was HK$371.1 million, increased by 89% from
HK$196.5 million for 2010.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s consolidated net asset
value was HK$1,458.2 million (2010: HK$405.5 million). As at
31 December 2011, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$236.0 million (2010: HK$115.1 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2011 was
0.57 (2010: 0.22). The gearing ratio, being the bank and other
loans, unsecured notes and convertible bonds, less cash and
cash equivalents divided by the total equity, as at 31 December
2011, was 1.04 (2010: 4.01). The adjusted gearing ratio,
being the bank and other loans and unsecured notes (exclude
convertible bonds), less cash and cash equivalents divided by
the total equity, as at 31 December 2011, was 0.27 (2010:
0.86).

The capital raising activities during the year are disclosed in
note 29 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We have successfully consolidated our department stores
operation in northwestern China, one of the highest growing
regions in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). This enables
the Group to achieve sustained business growth in the year of
2011. This strategy will continue to generate revenue growth
for the Group, while it will also identify further acquisition
opportunities.

Currently, the Group operates eight department stores and
six supermarkets in the northwestern China. The store GFA is
approximately 300,000 square meters (3,200,000 square feet),
including approximately 160,000 square meters (1,700,000
square feet) are self-owned properties. The business of which
continued to achieve rapid growth.

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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The Group’s flagship department store, Xi'an Bell Tower Store,
commenced business in 1998. The 15-year-old store has
undergone renovation this year, and managed to record 30%
growth in gross revenue despite decrease in overall operating
area by 1/5 during renovation. 12 of the globally renowned
brands recorded national top 5 sales performance in the store.
Among them “Swarovski” topped in national sales ranking,
"Giorgio Armani Cosmetics” ranked second in national sales,
“Chow Tai Fook” ranked third and “Estée Lauder” ranked
fourth as best national sales performers.

Another flagship department store, Xi‘an Hi-Tech Store, has
successfully introduced several global luxury brands during the
year, which further solidified its core leading position in the
commercial area of Xi'an Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone.
Among them, “Gucci” broke the highest first day new store
sales record in China’s operation. The gross revenue of Hi-Tech
Store increased by 52% comparing with last year.

Opened in the second half of 2010, Xi'an Saigo Store located
at the Economy and Technology Development Zone of Xi‘an.
Along with Xi‘an government office relocation to that area,
the region has become another key district of development.
Saigo store made profit within a year since its opening.
In January 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of
the commercial properties at Saigo International Block and
expanded the store area to over 90,000 square meters. Saigo
Store is going to be upgraded from a simple department
store to the biggest commercial complex in northern region’s
commercial zone in Xi'an that incorporates leisure, shopping,
entertainment and cuisine.

As the Century Ginwa VIP consumption accounts for around
60% of our gross revenue, enhancing member loyalty and
service satisfaction has always been Century Ginwa's key
focus. This year, we have recruited over 40,000 new members,
while over 14,000 members upgraded their status. Within the
year, the launching of phone shopping hotline, along with
corporate microblog and Century Ginwa's official website
all helped establish a better sales and customer relationship
platform.

In 2011, Century Ginwa has modified over 500 brands
including 200 newly introduced brands, 20 of which are
global first tier brands. We have also established a brand
management company to obtain the franchise of high-profit,
high-quality international and domestic second tier as well as
third tier brands. We believe this will become one of the key
growth drivers of Century Ginwa in the future.
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Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital to acquire the
Company’s convertible bonds amounting to HK$887 million
in late 2010, the cooperation between Hony Capital and the
Group has become more intense. In April 2011, Hony Capital
has exercised in full of the convertible bonds options to
subscribe the convertible bonds with the principal amount of
HK$443.5 million. In early June, Hony Capital further provided
the funding of approximately HK$420 million in order for the
Group to acquire the Hi-Tech Store properties. In October,
to further support the development of the Company and
allow the Company to maintain higher working capital, Hony
Capital has unconditionally waived all the future interest of the
convertible bonds it is holding. In this year, Hony Capital has
converted the convertible bonds of HK$305 million into total
1,109,090,908 ordinary shares of the Company, representing
26.9% of the Company’s issued share capital at the date of
report and became the Company’s second largest shareholder.

Hony Capital is an investment fund which is structured as
an exempted limited partnership established in the Cayman
Islands. According to the limited partnership interests of
Hony Capital, Legend Holdings Limited, via its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Right Lane Limited, is the single largest investor in
Hony Capital, with a holding of approximately 14.3% of the
value of the fund. Apart from Legend Holdings Limited, Hony
Capital has 77 other investors with interests ranging from
0.02% to 7.15% of the value of the fund.

Merger & Acquisition

The Group completed the acquisitions of two department
stores and five supermarkets in May 2011. Currently, the
Group operates five department stores in Xi‘an and one
department store in Urumgqi, and two department stores and
six supermarkets in Xianyang.

In order to consolidate the development of its own business
and mitigate the impact of increasing rental expenses due to
appreciation of commercial properties on its operation, the
Group entered a sale and purchase agreement to acquire
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company Limited on 16 May
2011. The shopping mall has a GFA of over 90,000 square
meters, which is a size similar to Festival Walk Shopping Mall
in Hong Kong. Approximately 27,000 square meters of the
shopping mall is currently operated by Xi‘an Century Ginwa
Saigo Shopping Mall Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group. Acquisition of such property may allow expansion of its
operation area, which may in turn generate additional income.
This acquisition has been completed in January 2012.
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In addition, the Group entered a sale and purchase agreement
on 9 June 2011 to acquire CPI Asia Big Bell 2 Limited, the
holding company of the property in which Xi‘an Hi-Tech
Store, operated by Xi‘an Century Ginwa Property Investments
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is located. The
shopping mall has a GFA of approximately 30,000 square
meters. The acquisition has been approved in shareholders’
Special General Meeting, and are currently pending
completion.

Upon completion, these acquisitions will (i) further enhance
the Group’s asset quality, saving considerable rental expenses
every year; and (ii) eliminate the risk and uncertainty
associated with renewing the lease agreement and facility
lease agreements, which will exert direct and positive influence
on the Group.

On 25 May 2011, the Company entered into a Memorandum
Of Understanding in relation to strategic cooperation in the
PRC with The Swank Shop Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of ENM Holdings Limited, another company listed on the
main board in Hong Kong which will develop and operate
brand stores located in the department stores operated by
the Company. This can help the Group solicit new customers,
further upgrade brand mix and improve the image of the
stores.

The Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities of acquiring department stores in the PRC. The
Board believes that backed by its operation network formed
by these department stores, the Group could further enhance
economies of scale, attract more talents and strengthen the
advantages of bulk purchasing, so as to contribute more
revenue to the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES

The Group’s banking facilities are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 34 to
the financial statements.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group’s operation of department stores
earned revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. Renminbi was
relatively stable although there was an appreciation pressure
during the year. The Directors considered that the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate was minimal,
and accordingly, the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purpose.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS

During the year, the Group's business operations were not
significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical factors.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s staff was approximately
10,000 (2010: 6,500), including direct employed approximately
2,700 (2010: 1,600) full time employees, remaining was
concession sales staffs managed on behalf of the suppliers.
Most of the employees are employed in Mainland China. The
direct employed employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary increments are assessed based on both individual’s and
Company’s performance, professional and working experience
and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group
also granted share options and discretionary bonus to the
eligible staff based on their performance and contribution to
the Group. The Group regards quality staff as one of the key
factors to corporate success.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian

Mr. Wu Yijian (“Mr. Wu"), aged 51, was appointed as
Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 7
January 2011. Mr. Wu currently holds directorship of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, and he was the executive director
and chairman of the Company from January 2001 to May
2008 and from May 2003 to May 2008, respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with a
Master degree in Economic Management. He was granted
the national titles of “Ten Most Outstanding Youth of
China” in 1996, “Contribution Award of International
Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997, “Chinese Excellent Youth
Entrepreneur” in 2002 and “National Outstanding Builders
of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu
is chairman and director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.
("Ginwa Enterprise”) (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the Ginwa Investment Company
Limited (“Ginwa Investment”). He is also the committee
member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, vice-chairman of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, chairman of the
Chairmen Board of China Federation of Industrial Economics,
vice-president of the China Association of Small and Medium
Enterprises, vice-chairman of China Red Ribbon Foundation,
expert committee member of The People’s Government of
Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president of Shaanxi
Business Promotion Association, vice-president of Shaanxi
General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president of
Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant, honorable
president of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited
and vice-president of Shaanxi Pharmaceutical Profession
Association.

BITESHFHITES

R—BEE

RBEAE([REE]) 51 RZZ
—— &Rt HEZTAARDNBEFRIE
HITEF - RAEAARREEWERA
2EE NHRR-_EE—E—-—AFE_F
ENFHARM_ZEE=FRAAE_FZ
NFRAM HERARBRMITEERERF -

RELFENFERMEAZ BBKEE
BETS2MU -REKE[—NNANFFE
TARELREF] [“ANEFBEEESD
EXBERR] [ —TT_F2EERFF
EERI M ZZEZTNFEFTREFCHES
IBRFXREREIFZERR - RAER
REEXE (RERNDBRAB (TRE
X)) (—HRLEBEFXRZALETZA
A REEREBRAF ([RERE]) A
BNEF -RAREEEBRHRES PER
BTEEBaerl/F HE T REHEH
EEEFEEE FEF/NEXBERE
R PEAHFESEESR RAEAR
BFRREANLZEREREZE RALA
Xetegek ROEARERISR KA
LERNRNERESR BAEALKEERE
gRkRALEEBERIG K-

tEeREEERARAT |



& . :
Biographies of Directors

EEEE

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 43, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 3 December 2010 and
was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Company on 7 January
2011 and a member of the remuneration committee.

Mr. Qiu joined Hony Capital in 2005. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interested in
6,322,102,827 shares within the meaning of part XV of SFO.
He oversees Hony Capital’s overall investment activities and
direct investments in culture and media, equipment machinery,
consumer goods and retail, and construction materials sectors.
He has extensive experience in direct investments, project
planning, business development and retail business. He built
and served as the chief executive officer of one of the largest
private-owned department stores chain in China. Mr. Qiu holds
a joint Master of Business Administration degree from the
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University
and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He received his bachelor degree in engineering from Xi‘an
Jiaotong University. He is a non-executive director of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Development
Co., Limited (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
Stock Code: 1157).

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (“Mr. Choon"), aged 44, was
appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 8 March 2010. Mr. Choon has over 20
years of experience in finance, mergers & acquisitions, and
corporate restructuring and held management positions in
various listed companies. Mr. Choon had worked for one of
the Big Four international accountancy firms and another
prestigious CPA firm and had also been engaged in various
mergers and acquisitions exercises. Mr. Choon was the general
manager of Finance Department of Guangnan Holdings
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited with Stock code: 1203) during its restructuring
exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also has experience
in department Store business in the PRC and was the director
of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan Plaza and also held the
position of deputy chief operating officer from 2003 to 2007
of Junefield Department Store Holdings Limited (a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
Stock code: 758). Mr. Choon was appointed as the chairman
assistant of the Company since 2007.

Annual Report 2011

BBrR{ES4E

BB A ([EB5EA]) » 435 M- Z —
TEFEF+_AZHEZTAEARAIRITE
£ YR -_T——F—A+BHEZEAK
RAZBIEFLTETHFMNEZES 2KE -

HEER—_TTRFMALBEKE A%
HEBBEREERERAFRARRE R
#756,322,102,827 D RIEFEH K HE
B EXVELFT R E 2 o o HEEE AR
BHEB REE  REEE  EEREE
ERBEEMBITECERBEETINER
HE-FREEKRE BEXRE EBKERE
MEEER TR LEELR -HETF
B ALEBEEGEHREEZ —WEET
BaaE - EF AL RBI R THE
ERERE BRI ABHARETHE
EEETEM - FEAALTIBAEZT
BE¥ESS BN -FARDPHE TR
ERBROBERAAR(—HERNEINESRRZ S
FIREBBERSGM EMZRA: BRHR
S 1157) ZIEBMITEE -

BREANLE

ERAANG A (TEEAE]) 44 N -T—
EFE=A)\BEEFALRRATNITESSH
ITHAE - B AR EE AR EAR
FTEEERE-_THELR TENZMLET
NEETEEBM - B EEBREP—F
WABRBRESAMESEAS —HEEEE
S EBEMAREE T EHELR
HBEH - R —HANANEFE_ZTZT—FE
m(EE)ERAR (—HREBBERS
FTERAR Emz AR B R :1203)
HETEATHHM BAEETZARZ
ISR - B ENMEETEHEEE
B N _EE—FF T FHIR
BEEHBEESEEERAR (—HRES
BMAXSFARAR LT ZAR KR
o758 2 AIEERERM BRFAH
HEZFCEREES 2EZ-—_TT+
FHREZTARQREZFHE-



Biographies of Directors

EEEE

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He
is currently vice president of Ginwa Enterprise (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and general manager
of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Limited Company (“Ginwa
Company”), both companies are connected persons of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Qu joined
Ginwa Enterprise and Ginwa Company in 1999. Before that,
Mr. Qu worked with several other large department stores and
shopping malls in Xian, China.

Mr. Qu has nearly 30 years of working experience in
department store business. Mr. Qu received management
education and training in Mainland China. He also received
training in High Level Business Administration from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi
Province Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000
and “China Professional Operational Management Master”
in 2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xian City People’s Assembly.

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha"), aged 54, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007. He
is currently the financial controller of Ginwa Company, a
connected person of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules. Mr. Sha joined Ginwa Company in 1997 and was
appointed financial controller and assistant general manager
in 2004 and 2009 respectively. Before Mr. Sha joined Ginwa
Company, he once worked as financial controller of the Supply
Station of XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited, and
the financial controller of Xian Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has more than 20 years of working experience
in commerce and finance. Mr. Sha received management
education and training in Mainland China. He also holds
a master degree in business administration from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He was awarded china career
manager in June 2003 and was appointed as taxation practice
review inspector by Xian Tax Bureau in the PRC in 2006. He
obtained a chief financial officer qualification certificate in
respect of business administration positions in 2007 and was
appointed as taxation practice review inspector of the local
taxation bureau in Lianhu District, Xian in 2009.

CES T
RB Ak ([#%E]) 528 R-TT
CENA+t— BEEEAAATNTE
£ RBBASTELE (—HR LEEER
S L2 AT BB RE LSRR
ARAT ([EAT])REE BB LD
BRIEE EMEATNAKTAREEA
ol ER—AANFMASIELER
SRERDF 281 HEERREARSMA
A S BB R O E B

HAELAEKEBERNEXHR T EAERLD
T FEEELR - HALEREAMERE
BREZAREI TREERRASE
EIBERRERE - BN _ZZETF+
AER BRAEEHETFLERE] - ER
“ETRFRER [PREEELLEKRE] -
HEETRE =R tOEARZHARK
RREREK-

DEREE

DERLEE([DERE]D) 545 RZZEZ
+tF LA BEZTARRARMITES-
DEERBFASTEART KA BRI £
MARAEE  ZRARABEARRIEEAL P
TER—NNEFMASTERT WA
EENFER _ZETENFLREZT AU
EES K Bl ARAEIR c N A B TE AR A%
AR TEAEE R R L HEEL I SR
BN =R B IS AR ES o

DEEBE_THFRELRYBITIELR-
BERPEAMEXERHE REI- I
REBLAAASBEETIHERRERIE
BHHEEEARAARz IHEEBELTE
fL-WR —_ET=FRNANBPEBERL
BAER IR _-_ZEFEPEALT
BRBEERESHEEIEMRAEER - —
EELFRELEEEMUMBEEER
AER—ZTNFREBAARTEN R
ARG RRGRAMRAEEE -




& . :
Biographies of Directors

EEEE

Mr. Chen Shuai

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen"”), aged 38, was appointed as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 3 December
2010 and was appointed as a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company on 7
January 2011.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interest in
6,322,102,827 shares within the meaning of part XV of SFO.
He directs investments in financial services, culture and media,
consumer goods and retail and construction material sectors.
Mr. Chen has extensive experience in investment management,
supplier management and retail business. Prior to joining
Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked in an investment
company, a PRC retail chain and department store and a PRC
domestic comprehensive supermarket company. Mr. Chen
holds an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School. He
received his bachelor degree in economics from Beijing Forestry
University. He is a non-executive director of China Glass
Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 3300).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan"), aged 58, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 24 September 2004. Mr. Chan graduated with
a bachelor degree in Social Science (Economics) from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr. Chan
has over 26 years' experience in marketing and business
development. Mr. Chan is also an executive director of China
Solar Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 155) and
Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock
Code: 8266).
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 41, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 25
September 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants; and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 18 years of experience in
accounting and finance. At present, Mr. Tsang runs his own
firm and practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holding Limited (formerly known as K.PI.
Company Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 605) which is engaged
in retail business and provision of short term pawn loan in
PRC. Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of
ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code:
30) which is engaged in the business of financial information
services for the period from 18 September 2008 to 28 January
2011,

Ms. Li Ling

Ms. Li Ling (“Ms. Li"), aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and a
chairman of remuneration committee on 16 January 2012.
Ms. Li has been working as the general manager of certain
reputable department stores and shopping complex in China
over the past 10 years and has extensive management
experience in department store and retail business. Ms.
Li holds a master of science degree in biology from the
Hangzhou University (currently known as Zhejiang University).
She is a consultant of Hangzhou lJiebai Group Company
Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 are set out in the financial statements on
pages 46 to 53.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
period ended 31 December 2007 and for the five years ended
31 December 2011 and the assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 are set
out on page 5.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution
of the Company passed on 15 February 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), the Company may grant options to the
eligible person of the Company to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time excluding
for this purpose shares issued in the exercise of options for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
eligible person for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 15 February 2011 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended according to the Share
Option Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person of the Share Option Scheme includes the
followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(i)~ a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(iv)  any person or entity whose service to the Group or
business with the Group contributes or is expected to
contribute to the business or operation of the Group as
may be determined by the directors from time to time.

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to Scheme
adjustments).

Details of movements in share options of the Company are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, no reserves (2010: Nil) were
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In
addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$893,755,000 (2010: HK$387,920,000), may
be distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in convertible notes of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$20,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (appointed on
7 January 2011)

Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (resigned on
27 September 2011)
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Ms. Li Ling (appointed on

7 January 2011)

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Mr.
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin, Mr. Qu Jiagi and Mr. Sha Yingjie will
retire from the office of directorship by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms.
Li Ling, and considers them to be independent for this year.
The Company considers that each of such Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent from the Group based
on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 15 to 19 of the annual report.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the following transactions between certain
connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Group have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which
relevant announcements and independent shareholders’
approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained by the
Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1)

Connected transactions

On 9 June 2011, to purchase the Hi-tech store property,
the conditional agreement (the “BB2 Agreement”)
entered into among Glory Keen Holdings Limited
("Glory Keen") as vendor, King Hero Limited (“King
Hero”, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
purchaser and the Company as guarantor in relation
to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
and shareholder’s loan in CPl Asia Big Bell 2 Limited
("Big Bell 2") at a consideration of the aggregate of
RMB350,870,199.48; and an interest charge of 9%
per annum on the above consideration, which will be
accrued since 10 June 2011 up to the BB2 completion
date. As the BB2 Agreement is conditional upon the
completion of a series connected transactions, therefore
which constitutes a connected transaction under
Chapter 14A. Details of the transaction refer to the
circular of the Company dated 27 June 2011.

On 31 October 2011, the supplemental instrument (the
"Supplemental Instrument”) entered into between the
Company and Glory Keen in relation to the amendment
of the coupon rate of the Hony convertible bonds
from 3% per annum to zero and waiver of interest
thereafter. As Glory Keen is a substantial Shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated under
the Supplemental Instrument constitute connected
transactions under Chapter 14A. Details of the
transaction refer to the circular of the Company dated
24 November 2011.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

On 10 June 2011, Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall
Company Limited (“Hi-Tech Store”), the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, as tenant, entered into
a property lease agreement and a facilities lease
agreement with Xi‘an Honghui Property Management
Company Limited (“Honghui”), as lessor, in respect
of the lease of the entire Hi-Tech Store property for
a period of three years commencing from 10 June
2011, at a monthly rental of RMB1.6 million and
RMB1.1 million respectively. The lease agreements
were arranged for the leasing of the retailing space
as necessary for the operation of the Hi-Tech Store.
During the year, a total of RMB17.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$21.2 million) was paid under
the lease agreements. Glory Keen, a substantial
shareholder and connected person of the Company,
being the holding company of Honghui since 10 June
2011. Therefore, Honghui is a connected person of the
Company. The transaction under the lease agreements
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company.

On 5 January 2009 and 16 January 2009, the
Company’s two subsidiaries, as lessors, entered
into tenancy agreements and supplemental tenancy
agreements with Xi‘an Century Ginwa Yipin Company
Limited (“Xi‘an Yipin"), as tenant, in respect of renting
properties at Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company
Limited (“Bell Tower Store”) and Hi-tech Store for
operations of supermarket business for a period of
three years commencing from 1 January 2009, at
annual rental of RMB4.5 million and RMB1.7 million
respectively. Renting properties to Xi‘an Yipin for
operation of supermarket in the Group's department
stores can enhance the product mix. During the
year, RMB4.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.4 million) and RMB1.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.4 million) were received under the
tenancy agreements by the Group's two subsidiaries
respectively. Xi'an Yipin is wholly owned by Ginwa
Investment, which is beneficially owned as to 60% by
Mr. Wu Yijian, a non-executive Director and chairman
of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company. The transactions under the
tenancy agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

All the continuing connected transactions above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company who have confirmed that
for the year ended 31 December 2011 the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms
available to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Further, the Company has engaged its external
auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on continuing connected transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their
conclusions in respect of the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") which were required to be entered
into the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest sand short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of director Nature of interests

BEEns EEME

Personal interests
&A=

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
BN E

Personal interests

A 25

Mr. Sha Yingjie
WEARNTE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed lIssuers in the Listing Rules or any interests which are
required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Company

Exercise
Price
Name of grantee Date of grant (HKS$)
TEE
ARARE BHAH (%)
Mr. Wu Yijian 20 Oct 2010 0.315
R—BRAE —ET-FF
TA=tA
20 Oct 2011 0.490
—E-—F
+A=+H
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit,20 Oct 2010 0.315
Edwin
BRALE —E-TF
+AZ+H
20 Oct 2011 0.490
—E-——F
TA=tA
Mr. Qu Jiaqi 20 Oct 2010 0.315
mRELEE —E-%F
+A=+H
20 Oct 2011 0.490
—T——F
+AZ+H
Mr. Sha Yingjie 20 Oct 2010 0.315
PERRNEE —E-FTF
TA=tA
20 Oct 2011 0.490
—ET-—F
+A=+H

Long position in the share options of the

Vesting and
exercise period

BERITES
20 Oct 2010 to

19 Oct 2015
—E-ZTFE+HA-_+RHE
—T—AF%t+A+AA
20 Oct 2011 to

19 Oct 2017
—E——%+A=+RHZ%
—E—+¥+A+AhA
20 Oct 2010 to

19 Oct 2015
—ZT-ZEF+A=-+AHZE
—EZ-RETATANA
20 Oct 2011 to

19 Oct 2017
—E-——%+A=Z+RHE
—T—tF+A+AH
20 Oct 2010 to

19 Oct 2015
—E-TF+A=+RHZE
—EZ-A%¥+At+AhA
20 Oct 2011 to

19 Oct 2017
—T-——%+A=-+H=Z
—E—+F+ATNH
20 Oct 2010 to

19 Oct 2015
—E-ZTFE+HA_-_+HE
—T—AF%t+A+AH
20 Oct 2011 to

19 Oct 2017
I W I o =
—E—+%¥+At+AhA

EERFEITHRAEREQFR
2%@@&@&&%2%%&%%

(b) AARBREZRR
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding

as at Granted as at

1 January during 31 December
2011 the year 2011
R=EB-—-F

R-ZZ-——F +t=A
-B-AH =+-8
RITHE FrRH i) K 4T
17,500,000 - 17,500,000
- 15,000,000 15,000,000
2,500,000 - 2,500,000
- 10,000,000 10,000,000
2,500,000 - 2,500,000
- 10,000,000 10,000,000
2,000,000 - 2,000,000
- 7,500,000 7,500,000

tEeREEERARAT |



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2011, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(a)

Long position/short position in the shares of the (a)

Company

Name of shareholder

BRE®

Best Mineral Resources Limited

Mr. Chen Jian

Rt

Glory Keen Holdings Limited
REZERERDA

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited

Hony Capital Management Limited

Mr. Zhao John Huan
HEEE
Right Lane Limited

BMHARLDF
Legend Holdings Limited

BRERER AR

Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan
Management Consulting Centre
I REFERERZAD O

Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Tung
Management Consulting Ltd.
IERBHEREREATRAR

Chinese Academy of Sciences
Holdings Co., Ltd.
TREMEREAEELERRER

NG|
Chinese Academy of Sciences

TR 2k

Long position/
short position

RE/HR

Long position
kB

Long position
kB

Long position
RE

Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
RE
Long position
kB
Long position
kB
Long position

kB

Long position

95

Nature of interests

EEME

Corporate interests
NGIE 5

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REELEREHES

Corporate interests
NGIE: 2

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLZEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLZEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLZEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLZEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLZEFEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REEEEREES

FERR (&)
FAARBZRAER

Number of
issued shares
held

e ®T
K& E

1,159,529,440

1,159,529,440

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

(Note 1)
(Htat1)

(Note 1)

(Fett)

(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)

(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)

(HizE2)

(Note 2)

(Fet2)

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital

of the Company
EADTF
BRITREAZ
BABES L

29.98%

29.98%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR (%)
(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b) REQXBRRESTETIRET M
. - - A T A [—] 2%
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as AROZRREER (ERREH
Fi=]
defined in Part XV of the SFO) R E R BIEXVED)
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the issued
Long position/ issued shares share capital
Name of shareholder short position Nature of interests held of the Company
EARRTE
~ TR £ BRTREAZ
BRREE RE/HER EEEE Ro#E OB
Best Mineral Resources Limited Long position Corporate interests 324,391,570 (Note 1) 8.39%
RE NRIER (Kaz1)
Mr. Chen Jian Long position Interest in a controlled 324,391,570 (Note 1) 8.39%
corporation ‘
BR b 5% A= 235 REEEERERER (Kzz1)
Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long position Corporate interests 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
REZERERDA 235 NCIL: £ (Hfet3)
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
ke REEEBRERER (Ki73)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
rE REEEERHERER (Ka3)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
RE REEEERERER (Hfet3)
Hony Capital Management Limited ~ Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
ke REEEBRERER (Ki73)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
HoEEE rE REEEERHERER (Ki3)
Right Lane Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479  (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
HHRER AT 235 REEEERERER (Hfet3)
Legend Holdings Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
BBIERARRAR kB REEEBRERER (Ki73)
Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479  (Note 3) 104.79%
Management Consulting Centre corporation
I REFERERZAD O kB REEEERHEER (Ka3)
Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Tung Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
Management Consulting Ltd. _ corporation
ERBFEREREAERAA RE REEEBERERER (HfeE3)
Chinese Academy of Sciences Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
Holdings Co., Ltd. corporation
PERZREEEESEAREME KB REEEBRERER (Ki73)
NS
Chinese Academy of Sciences Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
BB 2 235 REREE G ES (Kf73)
Grand Well Group Limited Long position Corporate interests 236,250,000 (Note 4) 6.11%
rE NEIER (Kfet4)
Mr. Mak Kam Fai Long position Interest in a controlled 236,250,000 (Note 4) 6.11%
corporation
ERBEE RE REEEERERER (Hfet4)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1M

Best Mineral Resources Limited (“BMRL") held
1,159,529,440 Shares and 324,391,570 underlying
Shares related to its derivative interests under the BMRL
Convertible Bonds in its own name with the principal
amount of HK$175,171,448 with conversion price
of HK$0.54 per share (“BMRL Convertible Bonds").
Mr. Chen Jian held 100% of the issued share capital
of BMRL. As such, Mr. Chen Jian was deemed to be
interested in 1,159,529,440 shares and 324,391,570
underlying shares related to its derivative interests by
virtue of his shareholding in BMRL. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the BMRL Convertible Bonds,
no holder of the BMRL Convertible Bonds or any party
acting in concert with such holder shall be permitted
to exercise the conversion rights attaching to the BMRL
Convertible Bonds if such exercise would result in such
holder or any party acting in concert with it being
required to make a mandatory general offer for the
shares of the Company under the Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases and/or the public
float of the Company would become less than 25% of
the issued share capital as required under the Listing
Rules after issuance of such Shares.

The derivative represents the BMRL Convertible Bonds.
Under the terms of the BMRL Convertible Bonds,
the conversion rights to the BMRL Convertible Bonds
cannot be exercised if, immediately after exercise of
such conversion rights into the Shares, the holder(s)
of the BMRL Convertible Bonds its concert parties will
trigger a general offer obligation under the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers and/or the public float
of the Company will be less than 25% of the issued
share capital of the Company as required under the
Listing Rules after issuance of such Shares.
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(1) Best Mineral Resources Limited
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1,159,529,4408% B% {7 LA & & 8
HABMRLAT R EHH T HT4E
2§ 2 324,391,5700% 10 B4 A%
N ARG FEA175,171,4488 70
H¥#{E&0.54/8 T ([BMRL
AHRRESR]) BRELERSHE
BMRL 100%E 31T A% A& -
Ut - BR A 5 A B B EBMRLZ |’
T 4% AR ERN1,159,529,440
BBRHDUARBEETERRZ
324,391,570 @R D FES
RS o 1R B BMRLA] # R (& 55 2 1§
MG - MBMRLAT AR &5 2
BHE AT EZFEA—BIT
&) 2 AL RITEBMRLAT % &
HIHE 2 RS BRZE
BASEMEE-HTEHZAL
BIREWE - & OF R ARG BB <7
BIVE 38 ) 1 2 U BB AN R BIRR
M2EERSIARBZRRLE
REBSHREITEBROEBER
ETRBFTREZ B BITRAZ
25% ' BIBMRLAJAAREH 2 35 F
AR MEE—BITE 2 AT
TEITEZ R -

£74 T E#EBMRLZ A[ AR (E % -
IRARBMRLAT AR B 55 2 165K 0 14
ZRETTFEBMRLAT AR B 5 2 83
BB (5 1% - BMRLA] IR R (&
FREBEARE—BITEALEHE
BEBLAKBERAMTATIE
PemBEEEZETR TR
BITEBRMNE AQRZAR
FREGER ETRAITAHRT
ZARRNAEBEITRA Z25% - A
T 1817 BMRLA] ¥ f% & % BT i
o 3




2 :
Directors’ Report

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

The long position of 2,268,620,348 Shares represents
(i) the 1,109,090,908 Shares held by Glory Keen
Holdings Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (ii) the security
interest held by Glory Keen over the 1,159,529,440
Shares held by BMRL under share charge. Hony Capital
Fund 2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital
of Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Capital Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P.. Mr. Zhao John Huan and Right Lane Limited
respectively own 55% and 45% equity interests in
Hony Capital Management Limited. Right Lane Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Legend Holdings
Limited. Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Management
Consulting Centre are the substantial shareholders
of Legend Holdings Limited, with 36% and 35%
interests, respectively. Chinese Academy of Sciences
Holdings Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinese Academy of Sciences. Beijing Lian Chi Zhi
Tung Management Consulting Ltd. is the sole general
partner of Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Management
Consulting Centre. Each of the above-mentioned
parties is therefore deemed to be interested in the
security interest held by Glory Keen.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The long position of 4,053,482,479 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 3,729,090,909
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible Bonds and the security interest held
by Glory Keen under the BMRL share charge over the
324,391,570 underlying Shares which may be issued
(subject to the conversion restriction as stated in Note
(1) above) under the BMRL CB. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
Bonds are subject to the restrictions as stated in the
paragraph headed “Principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 30 October 2010.

4) Grand Well Group Limited (“Grand Well”) held
236,250,000 underlying Shares related to its
derivative interests under the Grand Well convertible
bond in its own name with the principal amount of
HK$94,500,000 with the conversion price of HK$0.4
per Share. Mr. Mak Kam Fai holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Grand Well. As such, Mr. Mak Kam Fai
is deemed to be interested in 236,250,000 underlying
Shares related to its derivative interests by virtue of his
shareholding in Grand Well.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2011, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any
business apart from the Group's business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 29 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in note 34(a) to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in
any other litigation or arbitration of material importance and
there is no litigation or claim of material importance known
to the directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s shares in the market as required under
the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly) acted as auditors
of the Company up to and including the year ended 31
December 2009. Baker Tilly resigned and KPMG (“KPMG") was
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 6 January 2011.
KPMG audited the Company’s financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices and internal control policy and procedures from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for certain
deviations. The corporate governance of the Company for the
year is stated as follows:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the period from
1 January 2011 to 6 January 2011 (the “Relevant Period”),
the Company did not have chairman or deputy chairman of
the Board. During the Relevant Period, the Board, with the
assistance of the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Group, was responsible for overseeing the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group. The Board considers that such
arrangements enable the Group to operate effectively and
ensure a balance of power and authority. Mr. Wu Yijian and
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei have been appointed as Chairman and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 7 January 2011 respectively.
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Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term. However, all
the directors (Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-
executive) are subject to retirement at least once every three
years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year, the Board met regularly
and frequently for the review and approval on the business
of department stores. Details of Directors’ attendance of
the Board, Shareholders, audit and remuneration committee
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out as follows:

STRMESC A4 IR AR - JETTE R A
EECTHZRELEBEEE-AARZR
EBYIFRTERAFFAEEETE(E-
AT ARIEA 2 B A B2 40 BISE87 (1)1
2REF (BRWIT FRITRIBILIFNTT
EX)ARVB=FHESTE R At~
ARRRR/EDRREAERERRNAR Z
CEEATRILEEERTRIME 2R

e -

E R FA°

ARBIERESBIIFNATESRELD
RAIEI BERBEFZBLEOMELZ
HRE - ARAARERBEUIIFNTES
RAFEEHBELAL -

EEg2EE
EESAAETOEBERRTIERE &
ENEEEENVERE UL ESE
MERERHRE LUEXNAEBENREAR
FREBEEREATIRIXEANUEZR
T EERRTHETEESSR -EFT
EREFFRIKRLIOR HWEF—K-R
RFEE EFSTHREERTEE R
ARERKEAEREZEB -BRBE
T+ _A=1+—HIEFEETZ
Exggn REREG EREZESER
¥z Eegd EF2HFLEETIW
T~




L :
Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERSE

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD (continued)
Board
Meeting AGM & SGM
RRAF
RER

EZEed RRBAHIKE

Executive Directors

HITEE
Qiu Zhongwei 6/6 0/5
&
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin 6/6 5/5
BN
Qu Jiaqi 6/6 0/5
K
Sha Yingjie 6/6 1/5
DEAR

Non-Executive Directors

FHITEE
Note 1 Wu Yijian 6/6 1/5
ftatr R—E
Chen Shuai 6/6 1/5
BRED
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHITEE
Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 6/6 1/5
Note 2 Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing 4/4 0/4
fat2 B
Tsang Kwok Wai 6/6 1/5
Eilke
Note 1 Li Ling 6/6 1/5

faEr B®%

Notes:

1) appointed on 7 January 2011
2) resigned on 27 September 2011
3) established on 7 March 2012

/i~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]

E=gvEE(AE)

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee

EREEE FHEEE

- 2/2
2/2 2/2
2/2 2/2
2/2 1”71
2/2 2/2
2/2 2/2
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Committee

REZEE
Note 3
a3
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The primary objective of the audit committee is to review the
financial reporting process of the Group and its internal control
system, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
assigned by the Board and make recommendations for the
Company to improve the quality of financial information to be
disclosed. It also reviews the annual and interim reports of the
Company prior to their approval by the Board.

The audit committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the audit committee consists of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, one Non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter is the chairman of
audit committee.

The audit committee together with management and
independent auditors have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2011, and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2011 prior to their approval by the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A remuneration of HK$3,895,000 was paid/payable to the
Company’s external auditors for the provision of annual audit
services in 2011. During the year, the fees paid/payable to
the external auditors for audit services in connection with
acquisition of subsidiaries, amounted to HK$4,258,000.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duty of the remuneration committee is
to formulate the remuneration’s structure and policy of the
Group, reviewing the remuneration packages of Executive
Director and Senior Management, including bonuses and
options granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure
that such remuneration is reasonable and not excessive.
Generally, their remunerations are determined based on their
experience and qualifications, the Group’s performance as well
as market conditions.

The committee shall consist of not less than two members.
Currently, the remuneration committee consists of one
Executive Director: Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, three Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, and one Non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Ms. Li Ling is the chairman of the
remuneration committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 7 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The principal duties of the nomination committee
are to identify and nominate suitable candidates for the
appointment of the Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on succession planning for the Directors. The
nomination committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong,
Peter and Ms. Li Ling. Mr. Tsang kwok wai is the chairman of
the nomination committee.

The nomination committee has reviewed the board’s structure,
size and composition to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills, independent and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBSE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness at least
annually to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and
the Group’s assets. During the year ended 31 December
2011, the Board was assisted by the audit committee in
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system with no material deficiencies identified. The Board
and the audit committee have considered all material aspects,
including financial, operational and compliance controls,
risk management functions, as well as the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget in the review. The Board and the
audit committee are satisfied that the Group’s internal control
system was effective and there was no significant area of
concern which might affect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavour to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever
necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and extraordinary general
meetings to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board and the Board Committees;
(ii) distributing corporate documents and releasing
announcements to disseminate the Group’s latest information
to the shareholders; and (iii) maintaining the Company’s
website to provide an electronic means of communication with
the shareholders and the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company's website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 46 to 164, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2011, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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> 3¢
mE e R
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-FT——F+-_HA=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")) (L& ([Ex)) £31)

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-—5 —Z=-=F
Pt &% FERT FABT
Turnover =E 4 1,291,479 698,860
Cost of sales SH & R (503,446) (238,495)
Gross profit EF 788,033 460,365
Other revenue H e 5 9,989 22,135
Other net loss H B8 558 5 (2,039) (3,619)
Selling expenses HE R (76,810) (38,346)
Administrative expenses TR (469,458) (306,857)
Profit from operations reEmEF 249,715 133,678
Finance income B 7% U A 6(a) 67,501 34,493
Profit before taxation RR B4 A% R 6 317,216 168,171
Income tax Figm 7 (66,363) (48,449)
Profit for the year 7S5 % A 250,853 119,722
Attributable to: BTHALEN:
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZAX2Q &) &R 215,150 74,479
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 35,703 45,243
Profit for the year REERF 250,853 119,722
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (HK$ cents) 2R (GEWD 12(a) 8.28 4.32
Diluted (HK$ cents) g (B) 12(b) 0.89 1.01

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial FEAEN64B 2 WML THAK ZE M I Wm K
statements. = v
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income’

REETEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in HK$) — (LAETTZE3I)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

Available-for-sale financial assets:

net movement in fair value
reserve
Surplus on revaluation of
buildings held for own use
Exchange differences on
translation into presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.

HE_F——F+-A=1T—"HUFE

Note
it &%
7N B A

FEEHMEEEE (BRK
BRREFIERE) :
11
AfHHESREE:
NAEREBERFR

EfBIFERETZ
B

RBRENNEEZE
RER

AEEZHEKSAE

M5 AL
ZAN/NET) $
FEIE R s

AEEZHWSAE

Z B o

2011 2010
HK$"000 HK$"000
—F-—F —Z2-ZF
TER TAT
250,853 119,722
72 -
130,788 -
31,178 4,202
412,891 123,924
376,371 77,649
36,520 46,275
412,891 123,924

FES54E164H 2 M Th AR % F 8 1 R




mEMBMRR K
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+_-A=+—H
(Expressed in HK$)  (LAETLZ27)

Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE
Intangible assets BEEE
Goodwill EES
Loan receivables FE W E K
Deferred tax assets BEEFIEE E
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EERMEE

JREE Ui B K B L b B AR
RIREN B ARz B

Trade and other receivables
Prepayment for investment in a

subsidiary IA
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JE {1 AR SR N2 EL b FE 5 3R
Bank and other loans RITREMER
Unsecured notes EIKHEE
Current taxation REARLIE
Net current liabilities REBREFHE
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE
Non-current liabilities kFBEE
Bank and other loans RITRHEMER
Unsecured notes EIKREE
Convertible notes AR R E
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIEAE
NET ASSETS EEFE

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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Note

Ft i

13
14
15
17
28(b)

18
19
20(a)

20(b)
21

22
23(a)

28(a)

23(b)
24
25

28(b)

2011 2010
HK$"000 HK$'000
—F-—5 —Z=-=F
TER TAET
1,351,717 994,397
492,509 403,199
1,348,075 1,081,609
805,458 681,174
43,650 30,447
4,041,409 3,190,826
103,505 43,488
66,945 -
282,695 156,992
394,385 -
236,012 115,101
1,083,542 315,581
1,649,623 1,198,103
106,300 149,371
71,658 -
82,524 65,231
1,910,105 1,412,705
(826,563)  (1,097,124)
3,214,846 2,093,702
448,993 216,821
- 98,661
1,123,370 1,275,102
184,237 97,649
1,756,600 1,688,233
1,458,246 405,469

SESAR1648 2 R TR 2 S M R

ZEBn o



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRR R
At 31 December 2011 R-ZFE——F+_-A=+—H
(Expressed in HK$) — (LAETTZ3I)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE
Share capital AR A
Reserves G

Total equity attributable to equity A TR REGESAE

shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests RS
TOTAL EQUITY EREE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 March 2012.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
EBAAR
Director

BF

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.

2011 2010

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-—% -T-TF

iz Fix FHL
29

386,811 177,436

947,634 134,979

1,334,445 312,415

123,801 93,054

1,458,246 405,469

R-E-——F=A-+t-_AEEE2E
MR HE T3 o

Sha Yingjie
DEAR

Director

EF

SESAR1648 2 ML YR % F M I R
Z B o
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2 ; ) ] .
Statement,of Financial Position

B % AR R &R
At 31 December 2011

(Expressed in HK$)  (LAETLZ27)

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables
Unsecured notes

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Unsecured notes
Convertible notes

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

R_F——F+-_H=1—H

ERBEE
RHTB AR ZRE

REBEE
Hh & YK
RekREEHEEAR

RBAEE
H A & 3%
EIEHRE

REBEEFE
HREERRBEE

FRBEE
BB
AR

EEFH
B #
@
feé 178
A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22 March 2012.

ERRAAR
Director

BF

statements.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial
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2011 2010
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
—F-—5 —Z=-=F
ofs3 TER TAET
16 468,915 458,629
20(a) 1,757,415 1,682,795
21 442 2,954
1,757,857 1,685,749
22 44,422 463,892
24 71,658 -
116,080 463,892
1,641,777 1,221,857
2,110,692 1,680,486
24 - 98,661
25 1,123,370 1,275,102
1,123,370 1,373,763
987,322 306,723

29
386,811 177,436
600,511 129,287
987,322 306,723

R-E——HF=-A -+ _HEEEaHE

Ko I T3 o

Sha Yingjie

Director

EF

BSAR 1648 2 M sF hAEKZ S Sk
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-F——F+-_HA=+—HIFZE

(Expressed in HK$) (LB LZ7)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FDARRER
Property Non-
Share Share Capital Fairvalue  revaluation Statutory Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c) -~ (Note 29(d)i)) ~ (Note 29(d)ii) ~ (Note 29(d)ii) -~ (Note 29(a)(v)) ~ (Note 29(d)i) ~ (Note 29(d)vi)
i RHEE BAGE DAERE VEERRE EERE 2itEE 2% FERER BEEE
} ; T T T T Tién Titn Tién
(Wz2oli)  (F29a)) (K29l
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZ2-ZE-f-BEH 116,824 385,035 130,400 - - 18,625 14,623 (463,350) 202,157 38,599 240,756
Changes in equity for 2010: Z3-2ERESE:
Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - - 74479 74,479 4543 119,722
Other comprehensive income Eh2ENE - - - - - - 3,170 - 3,170 1,032 4,202
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 3170 74479 77,649 46,275 123924
Shares issued on the exercise of warrants
(Note 29(c)(i) 2,000 2,152 (152) - - - - - 4,000 - 4,000
Shares issued under share option scheme 200 733 303 - - - - - 630 - 630
Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Note 26) - - 6,750 - - - - - 6,750 - 6,750
Shares issued on rights issue MERBETR 58,412 - (1,057) - - - - 1,057 58412 - 58,412
Efect on equity arising from the WERBARSRE, ¥ E
acquisitions of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 8,180 8,180
Effect on equity arising from the offsetting  FEKER
of loan receivable with convertible notes, ~ #
the extinguishment and recognition of
the convertible notes - - (37,183) - - - - - (37,183) - (37,183)
Appropriation to reserves - - - - - 17,765 - (17,765) - - -
Transfer between reserves - - (4733) - - - - 4733 - - -
Transactions with equity holders of the  EREEREZEA L5
Group 60,612 2,885 (36,678) - - 17,765 - (11,975) 32,609 8,180 40,789
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZ-BE+2f
=t-R&H 177,436 387,920 93,722 - - 36,390 17,793 (400,846) 312,415 93,054 405,469
I I B B B D I D D D —
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-2--5-f-REH 177,436 387,920 312 - - 36,390 17,193 (400,846) 312415 93,054 405,469
Changes in equity for 2011: “2--FEESE:
Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - - 215,150 215,150 35,703 250,853
Other comprehensive income b2 Eka - - - n 130,788 - 30,361 - 161,221 817 162,038
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEF 2HUHES - - - n 130,788 - 30,361 215,150 376,371 36,520 412,891
Shares issued on the exercise of warrants FEEARG
(Note 29(c)i) 29(0)i) 30,132 32310 (2,181) - - - - - 60,261 - 60,261
Shares issued on the conversion of ZERRIRG
convertible notes (Note 25(iv)) 179,243 473,525 (85,958) - - - - - 566,810 - 566,810
Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Note 26) - - 11,065 - - - - - 11,065 - 11,065
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
(Note 31) - - (51,123) - - - - - (51,123) (5773) (56,896)
Effect on equity arising from the
redemption of the unsecured notes (Note
24) - - (11372) - - - - - (11,372) - (11372)
Effect on equity arising from the EHRERTARSEHR
extinguishment and recogition of the EEIYE
convertible notes (Note 25(i) - - 70,018 - - - - - 70,018 - 70,018
Appropriation to reserves - - - - - 2,416 - (22,416) - - -
Transactions with equity holders of the ~ EAEEREFHAZRS
Group 209,375 505,835 (69,551) - - 2,416 - (22,416) 645,659 (5773) 639,886
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB--5+ZF
St-R&H 386,811 893,755 811 n 130,788 58,806 48,154 (208,112) 1,334,445 123,801 1,458,246
I I B B B D I D D D —

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.
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mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z27)

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest income
Investment income from available-
for-sale financial assets
Finance income
Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses
Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of fixed
assets

Prepayment for investment in a
subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Repayment of loan receivables

Payment for the purchase of available-
for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-

sale financial assets

Payment for acquisitions of
subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

Payment of transaction costs in
connection with the acquisitions of
subsidiaries

Interest received

statements.

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial
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Note

Ff

S £
B Tt A
B

e 6(c), 13
REETEEEE 5

B A 5

AHHESHMEEZIRE

U 2z 5

B 75 U A 6(a)
EIREEEARD N2

FRIAR Y 6(b)

BEEL LD

7 8 2 S
B R I L 2
12
B B R R A A 2
b

REXBEEZERSE
ERAED

RETFHEEZERSE

28(a)

REED
BEEEEEMK

KRB AR 2 RE 2 TN

IR

BEE B BEMSHIA
BERWER
BEAHHESMEENK

HEAHLESREEMS

KIA

Yo 8 B X BN R HARR PR

Ug i 2 I8 & 30

WK B QB 2R BMAN

e
A

B WAE

Net cash used in investing activities REFE A2 FHEE

Z#Bn e
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2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
—g—-% —T-TF
FET FET
317,216 168,171
61,573 28,521
2,712 4,550
(1,504) (1,286)
(1,032) -
(67,501) (34,493)
11,065 6,750
(34,381) (11,796)
(91,121) (19,246)
174,083 55,359
371,110 196,530
(63,734) (29,356)
307,376 167,174
(72,912) (557,177)
(394,385) -
476 411
1,289 5,885
(103,854) -
131,778 -
(218,687) (342,347)
(8,520) (21,615)
1,504 1,286
663311) (913,557
ZEVBRE

E542 1648 2 M 5ETH AR



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-F——F+-_HA=+—HIFZE
(Expressed in HK$) — (LAETTZE3I)

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
i &t FERT FAT
Financing activities mMEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans MiBIRITERTE IE 519,073 37,929
Payment of transaction costs in IBRITER 2R %Wﬁ
connection with new bank loans INE/N (18,421) -
Repayment of bank and other loans  {E&R1T R E i & X (330,132) (177,052)
Proceeds from the issue BT MR BIBTSIA
of convertible notes 25 443,500 887,000
Payment for redemption of unsecured & [o] & 5 3 S 3% < 3¢
notes 24 (54,300) -
Proceeds from rights issue AR P15 5K I8 - 42,544
Proceeds from the exercise Tﬂiﬁ?\ﬂx%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁk
of warrants, net of transaction costs 1} %2 5k 2k 29(c)(ii) 60,261 4,000
Proceeds from the exercise TR AT IS 5RIB
of share options - 630
Increase in restricted cash at bank RITPRIR & 180 21 (116,279) -
Payment for the acquisitions of non- W B8 IFIF RSz 1 X
controlling interests 31 (56,896) -
Other finance costs paid HeENMBER (94,192) (24,989)
Net cash generated from financing REFEBELZ2FEE
activities 352,614 770,062
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ Bz#
and cash equivalents W), (3.321) 23,679
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzE2ERLE
at 1 January EREY=! 21 115,101 88,505
Effect of foreign exchange rate IERIBEBBH I HE
changes 7,953 2,917
Cash and cash equivalents R+-ZA=+—-HAzHRER
at 31 December RE&%EEEE 21 119,733 115,101

The notes on pages 54 to 164 form part of these financial — SE54F 1648 2 M sT K % E M K&
statements. Z #BAD e

HELHELERERAT | —B——FFH



otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (R IER B & B E T ZE5)

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 1 QAEH

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) o elEmEERER AR (KA
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as AIDRZZEZZFNANBREBER
an exempted company with limited liability under E-NAN—FRAVERARETMK
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the URERREBRAR ANAEZ KN
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong R_ZEZZE+AT=HREEER
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October BHMATZHARAR ([BZAT])
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the FH-ARABE_ZE——F+A
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 =T+ RLEFEZHEaVBBRERE
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively BRARAINEMBRAR (5B AL
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of B AEBZFEEBKANPEA
the Group are the operation of department stores in the RAME ([FE]EEBERA

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEIHEX

(a) Statement of compliance (a) EpHIZEe
These financial statements have been prepared ZEVBBREBEFRBEEAZ
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong BEAUBMEER ([HEUH
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which WELEA])  BREBEGHA
collective term includes all applicable individual g([EXSHAE])EH2
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong FMEERZERNESMERE
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and HH - FEGHER ([BEEST
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute B k2B BEELRGHR
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), Al &2 BB R RUER 2 BB R E R
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Blo ZEMBHRERIMDETHR
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the s EmARAZERARER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial EoARERMNZ TE B
statements also comply with the applicable B o

disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised BEAGHMAGEEME T
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for MBI 2 BB W E AR
early adoption for the current accounting period RN SEIYSFNYN] i 8-
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides EARE B R A S AT IR PR AN o
information on any changes in accounting BRERALEERNEEBE 5
policies resulting from initial application of these I RSB ET < 2RI FT B BN E B
developments to the extent that they are relevant RAE &t AR 2 R g5t ECR
to the Group for the current and prior accounting BE}ERAMBERERARK - B
periods reflected in these financial statements. B E R RIS -

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIF S HIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEE (&)

(continued)

(b) MBEHRREREE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for derivative financial instruments (see Note
2(e)), financial assets classified as available-for-sale
(see Note 2(f)) and leasehold land and buildings (see
Note 2(g)) which are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 39.
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(c)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net
current liabilities of HK$826,563,000. This condition
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, that the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. These financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the
Group at 31 December 2011 because the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that based
on a cash flow forecast of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2012, the Group would have
adequate funds to meet liabilities as and when they
fall due at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider it is appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIF S HIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHEEX (&)
(continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MMBARIRIFERER (&)

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those equity interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those equity interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
jointly controlled entity.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)
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"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2(j)(i)), unless the

investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Derivative financial instruments

(f)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially, and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Fair values of exchange traded derivative
are obtained from quoted market price. Fair values
of over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using
valuation techniques, including discounted cash
flow model and option pricing model. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised in
the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
convertible notes (see Note 2(m)) with an embedded
conversion option. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely
related to those of the host contract; the terms of
the embedded derivatives would meet the definition
of a stand-alone derivative if they are contained
in a separate contract; and the combined contract
is not held for trading or designated at fair value.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes therein recognised in the income
statement.

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions are
with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset
exists, and the parties intend to settle the cash flows
on a net basis.

Investments in available-for-sale financial
assets

Investments other than investments in subsidiaries
are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)
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B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Investments in available-for-sale financial
assets (continued)

Investments which do not fall into the categories
of investments in securities held for trading and
held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
investments. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve. Where these investments
are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(u)(v). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(j)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
the income statement.,

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIF S HIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

TESTBER (8)

() BIEEE (&)

(g) Fixed assets (continued)

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the reserve
in respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to the income statement to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to the
income statement.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to
the income statement.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)
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B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated useful lives

Leasehold land and buildings Over the unexpired

term of lease

Leasehold improvements 3-35 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-35 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j)) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-
for-sale financial assets and equity
securities and receivables

Investments in equity securities and non-
current and current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-
for-sale financial assets and equity
securities and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with Note
2(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 2(j)(ii).

- For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
the income statement. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is recognised in
the income statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed
in the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in available-
for-sale financial assets and equity
securities and receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the
income statement.

For non-current and current receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R MY R

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIF S HIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHE#H)
(continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in available- () THRHELHEERKE
for-sale financial assets and equity EFEREUR W ER
securities and receivables (continued) B (&)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the income statement.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of receivable whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
the income statement.
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B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  fixed assets (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts),

- intangible assets; and
- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
the recoverable amount for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to the income statement
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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B %5 R R Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

2

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on

prevailing market conditions.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

U]

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (Note 2(j)(i)).
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B %5 R R Y &E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component

Convertible notes that can be converted
to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that
would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received
at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain
a liability component, an equity component,
and a derivative component, where applicable.

At initial recognition, the liability component
of the convertible notes is measured as the
present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not
have a conversion option, and the derivative
component of the convertible notes, if any,
is measured at fair value (see Note 2(e)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component and
the derivative component, where applicable,
is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated
to the liability, derivative (where applicable)
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The derivative component (if any) is
subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(e). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The
interest expense recognised in the income
statement on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.
The equity component is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes (continued)

2

TESTBER (8)

(m) TRERRE (&)

(i) Convertible notes that contain an equity (i) BHEEZBHZATHLKRE
component (continued) ® (&)
If the note is converted, the capital reserve, e BHRWELR Q&R
together with the carrying amount of the FH ERTE(WE) R
derivative (if any) and liability components at BEHMEBSRENRE
the time of conversion, are transferred to share BgEBElRANKN R
capital and share premium as consideration B WIERETRHO 2K
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, BofmeZEHEBEER: 8
the capital reserve is released directly to EARAGEeEERRBER
retained profits, and any difference between BafM-mENEgEET
the amount paid and the carrying amounts of 4 (nE) RaEEmn 2k
derivative (if any) and liability components is [ FE B Z B e < 1
recognised in the income statement. o

(ii) Other convertible notes (i) HMaBKRE

Convertible notes which do not contain
an equity component are accounted for as
follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component
of the convertible notes is measured at fair
value (see Note 2(e)). Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs that
relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds. The portion of the transaction
costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component
is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(e). The
liability component is subsequently carried
at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in the income statement on the
liability component is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes (continued)

(ii) Other convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts
of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, any difference between
the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in the income
statement.

Warrants

The issue of warrants will be settled by the
exchange of fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company's own equity instruments.
When the warrants are subscribed, the fair value of
the consideration received is recognised in capital
reserve.

The fair value of the warrant is recognised in capital
reserve until either the warrant is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the warrant expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the income statement for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income statement as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

(ii) Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation of
department stores and supermarkets is
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the income statement
in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(iv) Customer loyalty programme

The Group's customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHE#H)
(continued)
(x) Related parties (continued) (x) BEAL(E)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy BBRAES BB
of the other entity (or an associate or ERAHBEEDE
joint venture of a member of a group of (KEZ—EBERFAES
which the other entity is a member). EXBE AR ZEE R

(i) One entity is a joint venture of a third (i &

BEEZBEZA
entity and the other entity is an associate EhEES—EBR
of the third entity. F-BERIBER

=] o

(iv) The entity is a post-employment benefit vy, BRBAAREENEE
plan for the benefit of employees of rEBEHCER
either the Group or an entity related to EERIZEREN
the Group. FElzZE=mA

(v) The entity is controlled or jointly (v) EBERBH@MATAL
controlled by a person identified in (a). 2 il X FE R o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) BQ@OFFRTALTH
influence over the entity or is a member ERHEBERATER
of the key management personnel of the 75’_';: R (ZEE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). BRARIZFEER

S -

Close members of the family of a person are those BRI AL 233K BERK B Th15 %
family members who may be expected to influence, HEBRETEHARR SRR
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings ERWTBIREBKE -
with the entity.

(y) Segment reporting (y) 2B®mE
Operating segments, and the amounts of REDBRMEBMENZ WM F
each segment item reported in the financial DEPIBE 2 o EEHTEHRMIT
statements, are identified from the financial AREBZRSITHEEABNUEERE
information provided regularly to the Group’s BB REAEE 2 EIBEFER
most senior executive management for the Kl 53 BB AETT SR AR AT A4 2 BT HS
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing BRI R A o

the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group's turnover is substantially derived from
retail customers situated in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
northwestern region of the PRC. Accordingly, no
segment analysis based on geographical location of
the customers and assets is provided.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction.

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

o HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of
a related party. As a result, the Group has re-
assessed the identification of related parties and
concluded that the revised definition does not have
any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous periods.
HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related
entities. This does not impact the Group because
the Group is not a government-related entity.

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s financial instruments in Note 32 have been
conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact
on the classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous periods.
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(BRIF=HEH

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores and supermarkets in
the PRC.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold
to customers (net of value added tax or other sales
tax and discounts), net income from concession
sales, rental income from operating leases and
management service fee income. The amount of
each significant category of revenue and net income
recognised during the year is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods 72 on 86 &

Net income from concession sales T T S 85 & F A
Rental income from operating leases 2R [ 4% & EHEZHESRA
Management service fee income IEH&W%?H&U\

The Group engages in the retail business,
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and
has no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil). Details
of concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
32(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising
from the sales of goods and concession sales
charged to retail customers, and rental income
from operating leases and management service fee
income charged to tenants, net of value added tax
or other sales tax and discounts.

Sales of goods #H & 7 an
Gross revenue from concession sales
Rental income from operating leases

Management service fee income EIEARTS B WA
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(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Turnover (continued)

(b)

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below:

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores: this segment comprises 8
department store operations.

Supermarkets: this segment comprises 6
supermarket operations.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
and net income generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, investment income
and other financial charges and income, and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is set out below.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EEERDTBHRE (£
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DS (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) DEEHR (E)
2011
—BE——F
Department
stores Supermarkets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEAF BT IS =
FExT FET FHExT
Revenue from external 4N REFE Z Uz &
customers and AIERE D Ef
reportable segment
revenue 1,151,516 139,963 1,291,479

Reportable segment profit A #8550 ) (48
(adjusted EBITDA) I EEBITDA) 392,708 4,996 397,704

2010
—E—FF
Department

stores
HK$'000
BERA

TR

Revenue from external SN REFE 72 Uz &
customers and AR E o E =
reportable segment
revenue 698,860

.

Reportable segment profit 7] $i & 5 50 ) (42
(adjusted EBITDA) FZEEBITDA ) 223,978
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(b)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

profit

Reportable segment profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Depreciation

Finance income

Unallocated head office and
corporate administration
expenses

Profit before taxation

5 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS

Other revenue

Non-redemption of credits under customer
loyalty programme

Interest income

Investment income from available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 11(b))

Others

Other net loss

Net loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net income from the sale of food and
beverages in department stores

A ¥R & 0 80 A

H b W zn

H 518 ¥ 58

e

FA A

ADEEMER
KRBT X

H by 25
BESETPEMEE
BTZ2ED

FEUWA
AtHESMEEZIRE
Wz (MfaE11(b))
Hb

Hi @858

REBTEEBRFR

KERBERARNHERY
R SR 2 W F 8

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—g——% —T-TF
TR Fisi
397,704 223,978
2,536 1,286
(2,712) (4,550)
(61,573) (28,521)
67,501 34,493
(86,240) (58,515)
317,216 168,171
5 HitWsKkEREFHE

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—g-—F —T-TF
TR Tis

- 15,347

1,504 1,286
1,032 -
7,453 5,502
9,989 22,135
(2,712) (4,550)

673 931
(2,039) (3,619)
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 FRBIAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRELADE M E MR (BTA) -
(crediting):
(a) Finance income: (a) B A:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F —ET-FF
THER FHT
Interest expenses on bank RITREMERZFEZ
and other loans 38,573 19,119
Finance charges on unsecured BERZRRAIBRRERZ
and convertible notes B 7% S 175,417 95,861
Bank charges and other finance costs #R77% A & HE b B 75 & A 13,074 7,748
Total borrowing costs BEERKA 227,064 122,728
Finance income on loan receivables  FEUE 3k 2 BF UL A (88,706) (126,986)
Changes in fair value on the derivative A # & Z & 2 HT & 2D A 7t
components of convertible notes BEE) (205,859) (34,319)
Net loss on redemption of convertible & [0l 7] # J = 4% ~ E18 /5 58
notes - 4,084
(67,501) (34,493)
No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the BEEENARBE_Z——F
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil). T A=t -HLEFEEARL

(ZF—FF /) -

(b) Staff costs: (b) BEIRERA:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2——F —E-TF
FExT FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits HFe - TENEMEBR 135,550 82,554

Contributions to defined contribution [A] & %84t FUR R aH 2 =X
retirement plans 9,431 5,910

Equity-settled share-based payment 3RS #EAE & DARS 9 X 1+

expenses (Note 26) 2 (KHtaE26) 11,065 6,750
156,046 95,214

tEeREERRARAR |
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(b) Staff costs: (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes managed by the local government
authorities, whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the schemes at 20% of
the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of the
PRC subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the average
salaries level in the PRC, from the above mentioned
retirement schemes at their normal retirement age.

The employees of the Company who situated in
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong"”) participate in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, whereby the Company is required to
contribute to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
basic salaries.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

BR Bt A A (42)
(b) BIMA: (#)

AEBRPBEKLZHERF
(THERERR]) 2EBEZ A
Mo 75 BR AT MR R IR 2 TE R R
RKEMEE B B E A
FAIARREEEANH T 220%[A
& E AT B - IR IE £ AR KT
2 TEMNBLREENERE
FRN G iR B R L AURIRET
EERTBEFHFEKEED
Loat B2 RIKTE A

ARBZEBFRITRE ([&
BlEEZ2EBHEREERS
2 At AR BARREBEARFH
B Z5% R &aT SR -

BR 1B ot 6 R SR 4N NS E
BMELEMRARENTRZE
Feo

Other items: ()
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR BN &

— annual audit service —FEZERE

— audit service in connection with — UK BB B 1B A B 2 AZ R

acquisitions of subsidiaries b
Depreciation (Note 13)

e (Mat13)

Reversal of impairment losses on trade J& U B % K £ b & I ORI (E

and other receivables (Note 20(a)(ii))

HEEMR:
— buildings —gF
- motor vehicles —EH TR
— contingent rentals on property —“MEMEZHAESE
rentals
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE B 18 % R
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) EEFEKA (Kat18)

Annual Report 2011

B iR E (ffat20(a)ii))
Operating lease charges in respect of: BRI T SIE 2 K&

HiEAH :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®2——% -T-TF
FHET FET
3,895 2,039
4,258 2,070
61,573 28,521
(2,850) -
146,718 115,619
1,737 1,655
2,956 2,816
236 255
397,294 191,739
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([RIER B & B E T ZE5)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEWRBRRAMBH
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) HREWBZRAZBIER:
statement represents:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2——-F —E-ZTF
FET FET
Current tax (Note 28(a)): AEAREIE (ff7228(@a)) -
— Provision for PRC income tax —FAPBETEHEE
for the year 79,001 50,658
— Withholding income tax on —BAAREE— M
dividends paid by a PRC BARIKNKREZTE
subsidiary of the Group MNAEH - 1,548
— (Over-)/under-provision in respect —BEEE (BERE)
of prior years BETRE (3,626) 853
75,375 53,059
Deferred taxation (Note 28(b)): EERLIE (f17728(b)) -
— Origination and reversal of - TRUEERECZESE
temporary differences & (9,012) (4,610)
66,363 48,449
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HEAREAGTF2HEIHRK
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: gihafumT:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B2-—-F —T-TF
FET FET
Profit before taxation B 4 Al v ) 317,216 168,171
Expected tax on profit before tax, BB G A 2 FAEARITE » 4%
calculated at the rates applicable piE F'%fh%ﬂ}ﬂiélf_uﬁ’%f%iﬁé
to profits in the tax jurisdictions @AM ETE
concerned (Notes (i), (ii) and (iii)) (HTEEG) ~ (i) X (i) ) 74,692 58,660
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ a] 13, 37 1 2 1 7 5 28 2,431 1,956
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBRA BB E (20,777) (21,304)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERREATBEEIR
recognised S B 13,643 6,736
Withholding income tax on dividends ZRE[E ~ A B B A T2
paid by a PRC subsidiary of the B Z FEHFTFH
Group - 1,548
(Over-)/under-provision in respect of BT (BREEE) &
prior years w2 (3.626) 853
Income tax FTis®i 66,363 48,449

HELHELERERAT | —B——FFH



otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made, as the Company and the subsidiaries of the
Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to

PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 15% to 25%).
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section BEBEES (RRHEDD) F16116HE

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as ZESEFHT
follows:
2011
—B--F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(Note (1)
He 2
RE#EN i |
Ezhe BH BEEAL aE Mt RBAR @it
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
(HizE)
Executive directors ~ #{TEZE
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei WELE 5 - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, BEALE
Edwin 1,500 448 2,500 12 4,460 348 4,808
Mr. Qu Jiagi BxEEE 108 552 1,410 25 2,095 348 2,443
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEREE 9% 433 836 25 1,390 261 1,651
Non-executive directors #5117 EE
Mr. Wu Yijian R-BEYE
(Appointed on 7 (R=%
January 2011) ——%—A
tREZ
f) 1,181 69 - 12 1,262 521 1,783
Mr. Chen Shuai BREn 4 4 5 - - - 5 _ 5

Independent non- BUFHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, BRA% %4
Peter 96 - - - 9 - 9%
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, — B&E %4
Ewing (Resigned (R=%

on 27 September ——FnA
2011) “t+tHE
f) n - - - 7 - 7
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BEEE 96 - - - 96 - 96
Ms. Li Ling BRat (B
(Appointed on 7 “E——F
January 2011) —RtHE
Z{T) 9% - - - 94 - 9

3,253 1,502 4,746 74 9,575 1478 11,053

tEeREEERARAT |
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8 ESHM (&)
2010
—T-%f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total  payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note (;)
Fe
REMWEY BREiE
2k BN BEEL =% N REARER @t
FET FET FET TET FET TET TET
(Hi#()
Executive directors ~ H{TEE
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei @
(Appointed on 3 (RZZ-
December 2010) TET-A
“PEZ
f£) - - - - - - -
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, BREAEE
Edwin (Appointedon (A =Z—
8 March 2010) TEZRAN
HEZ) - 1,218 3,000 10 4228 377 4,605
Mr. Qu Jiagi BREESE - 385 1,094 23 1,502 382 1,884
Mr. Sha Yingjie WEAEE - 316 722 23 1,061 306 1,367
Mr. Hu Yangxiong HEELE
(Resigned on 8 March ~ (RZ=%—
2010) EE=AN
HE(T) - 283 - 3 286 7 293
Mr. Li Haogang FELE
(Resigned on 3 (RZZ—
December 2010) B
“HEfF) - 329 823 23 1,175 352 1,527
Ms. Lu Xiaoling BERLTT
(Resigned on 3 (R=%-
December 2010) ZFE+-A
=HEE) - 228 - 31 259 - 259
Non-executive director ##TEE
Mr. Chen Shuai BRAD LA (R
(Appointed on 3 —Z-%
December 2010) +ZA=H
EZRE) - - - - - _ _
Independent non- BUFHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, BRA¥ %4
Peter 9% - - - 9 - 9
Mr. FuWing Kwok, — B&E%4E
Ewing 96 - - - 96 - 96
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BELE 9% - - - % - %
288 2,759 5,639 113 8,799 1,424 10,223

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There were no amounts paid during the year to the
directors in connection with their retirement from
employment or compensation for loss of office with the
Group, or inducement to join. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Note (i):  These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in Note 2(r)(ii). The details of these benefits in
kind, including the principal terms and number of
options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and
Note 26.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2010: four) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other two (2010: one)
individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses Y IFIEAT
Retirement scheme contributions RIS ETEIMH
Share-based payments AR 9 1~ 7R

No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

e RMEEOEDER

8 EEHM &)
AEBRFRALEANEETZNEMNE
I8 180 <5 3 AN 33 Bl L A 18 XD A By 22 B
ZHBE-FALBEFRELR BN
BZEAME 2Rk

FaE) . ZEFRBERBEARRELE
AEIRTES 2B AT
EBE -ZEREEZEERR
RN ER B 5 M RE2(n)() B
NRRZZEFBERFE-F
MULEFEMEMNZHE 85
TERARE T ZBRER
B ERNEFEREZ[BK
TR — B P 26K EE -

9 EEHAL
ERAEREHFALR =& (ZF—
TE ML) HAEE TSNS
B B T -

EBREMME (ZT—ZF: —H)A
TBE@EmT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F —E-ZF

FET FET

687 407

2,081 842

= 25 26
1,338 302

4,131 1,577

FRWEFZFEE R E
e (ERAEMAIRIMAREE
2 RS ERBERMAE-

tEeREEERARAT |
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B %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BREHFAL(E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments of the two (2010: one) individuals who MG (ZE—FTF . — L)W IFES
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest paid BERAEEREEaHA LT ZHEA
individuals of the Group are within the following bands: AT ZH M FATEHE !
2011 2010
Number of Number of
HKS$#% T individuals individual
—E——F —E-TF
18 B A B (BRIP4
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 -
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 AATREESZER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity ARG BREEMZHEERNBIE
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of 16,183,000 L2 BE(Z T —F
HK$16,183,000 (2010: loss of HK$93,192,000) which % :[E1893,192,0008 ) ' E R
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the AABZ M BRENERE (R WF
Company (see Note 29(a)). 29(a)) °
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 Hth2Ek=E
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) EHEMZERZEMOEBZ
other comprehensive income HRETE
2011 2010
—E——-F —T-%F
Before and
Before Net-of- net-of-
tax Tax tax tax
amount expense amount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note 28(b)
BRBE A HBRBE MEGRHE
8 HIEMY 8 &8
TERT TERT TERL FAET
Bf5£28(b)
Available-for-sale financial assets: At HESREE !
net movement in fair ARERBEESTE
value reserve 96 (24) 72 -
Surplus on revaluation of buildings EHEERET 2 B
held for own use (Note 13) (Kfaz13) 174,384 (43,596) 130,788 -
Exchange differences on translation 8 A2 HEW 7
into presentation currency ERER 31,178 - 31,178 4,202
Other comprehensive income Hi2EK R 205,658 (43,620) 162,038 4,202

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([RIER B & B E T ZE5)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11
(continued)

HitvZ2E WS (8)

(b) HitZHEWEEH BEEH

(b) Components of other comprehensive income,

including reclassification adjustments DEAE
2011
HK$'000
—E——F
FHET
Available-for-sale financial assets: AtEESREE:
Changes in fair value recognised during the FABBANEEZS
year 1,128
Reclassification adjustments for amounts EHOBAREAGERRRZ
transferred to consolidated income S
statement:
— gain on sale (Note 5) —SHE R A (K aE5) (1,032)
Net deferred tax charged to other AR ZIEERIE RS
comprehensive income (Note 28(b)) (Hf#28(b)) (24)
Net movement in the fair value reserve during iW’D\ﬁTﬁfﬁﬁ """"" FFHENEME
the year recognised in other comprehensive R &R
income 72
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER

(a) Basic earnings per share

(a) BREZXER

ERERBFZKIBARRRE
J& 165 5% #1215,150,0005 7T ( =
T —F 74,479,000 70 ) &
FRNEBITRMD ZMNEFHTH
2,597,525,0000% & & A% (_ =

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$215,150,000
(2010: HK$74,479,000) and the weighted
average of 2,597,525,000 ordinary shares (2010:

1,724,709,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the —Z 4 1 1,724,709,0000% E i@
year, calculated as follows: f&)Er&E M T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERMEFGH:
2011 2010
‘000 ‘000
—E——F —E-FF
T B T 1%
Issued ordinary shares at R—A—BZBETEERK
1 January 1,774,361 1,168,241
Effect of rights issue Rz 2 - 552,714
Effect of conversion of convertible BRI MR EE 2 e
notes (Note 25(iv)) (BfaE25(v)) 699,638 -
Effect of warrants exercised BITERRERE FE
(Note 29(c)(ii)) (Hta£29(c)(i) ) 123,526 3,699
Effect of share options exercised EITEEREZZE - 55 :
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ - A =+—H 2 ZBi%
shares at 31 December Nk FHE 2,597,525 1,724,709

HELHELERERAT | —B——FFH
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BREF (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share BRESERNZKERADF
is based on the profit attributable to equity fI% 5 P& 15 )i F64,346,000%
shareholders of the Company of HK$64,346,000 7T (ZZE—Z % :38,055,000
(2010: HK$38,055,000) and the weighted average BRI RETEKR 2 INEFHH
number of 7,246,619,000 ordinary shares (2010: 7,246,619,0001% (Z & — =
3,773,974,000 ordinary shares), calculated as £ :3,773,974,0000% ) 5t & 0
follows: ™
(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity (i) XRAAEBERKRRENLZ
shareholders of the Company (diluted) F (#%)
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
THER FHT

Profit attributable to ordinary T3 IR AR E {1 i A

equity shareholders 215,150 74,479
After tax effect of effective interestA] #J& Z & & & 2[ 10 B A

on the liability components of BrzhEBlrEE

convertible notes 105,404 88,272
After tax effect of changes in AR AR AR 2 0T A 2R 1

fair value recognised on the RZARBEEBZBRHE

derivative components of wE

convertible notes (256,208) (124,696)

Profit attributable to ordinary 5 A% S R % A

equity shareholders (diluted) (#5%) 64,346 38,055
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) BERMEFSE (#
shares (diluted) )
2011 2010
‘000 ‘000
—E——F —E—ZF
T T B
Weighted average number of Rt A=Zt+—HBz2EaEK
ordinary shares at 31 December  JN#E F 15 £x 2,597,525 1,724,709
Effect of conversion ERIBRER R
of convertible notes 4,505,311 1,915,026
Effect of deemed issue of shares 18 /77 {5 3R A% HE 75 A5 25 1T AR
on the exercise of warrants & 124,836 131,145
Effect of deemed issue of shares 18 &1E 15 A& A 76 R+ 2l
under the Company’s share BTG 22
option scheme 18,947 3,094

Weighted average number of Rt A=+—Hz2LaRK
ordinary shares (diluted) at INFEFH & (EE)
31 December 7,246,619 3,773,974

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

13 FIXED ASSETS 13 BEEE
The Group REE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HE+H  AENX KA KE
kT % Rt nE ERIRE GL
TET THETL THETL THEL TBTL TET

Cost: R
At 1 January 2010 RZE-—F
—A—H - 137,688 45,169 6,210 3,901 192,968
Exchange adjustments & i 5% - 6,154 3,939 318 308 10,719
Additions through BRRERELR
acquisitions of IRE
subsidiaries - 66,213 7,123 785 - 74,121
Additions =Y 746,491 21,411 9,982 4,736 12,531 795,151
Transfer in/(out) gA/(H) - 4330 - - (4,330) -
Disposals BE - (4,840) (4,115) (2,175) - (11,130)
At 31 December 2010 RA=E—EF
+=ZA=+-H 746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Representing: i
Cost B R - 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 315,338
Valuation - 2010 BE-ZF—TF 746,491 - - - - 746,491
746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Accumulated B2iiE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZF
—A—H - 26,449 11,305 521 - 38,275
Exchange adjustments & i 57 - 1,680 1,968 9% - 3,744
Additions through FRUWENEBAR
acquisitions of IRE
subsidiaries - 2,320 715 26 - 3,061
Charge for the year ~ FEHE 1,417 18,158 6,120 2,826 - 28,521
Written back on B B B o]
disposals - (2,362) (2,202) (1,605) - (6,169)
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE—E4F
+=A=1+-H 1,417 46,245 17,906 1,864 - 67,432
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 R=Z—-ZF
+=A=+-H 745,074 184,711 44,192 8,010 12,410 994,397

tEeREEERARAT |



B %5 R R Y &

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

13 EEEE (&)

The Group (continued) KEE(EF)
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HET HENE KRB
REF £ ET] RE  GEEIR Bt
TEL TET FET FET FET TET
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2011 R-E——F
—H—H 746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Exchange adjustments [E i 38 % 44,164 14,376 5,813 564 814 65,731
Additions through ERKERELR

acquisition of ZNE

subsidiaries (Note 30)  ( f:#30) 104,401 39,679 19,085 1,227 - 164,392
Additions NE - 40,212 6,083 - 22,239 68,534
Transfer in/(out) 2/ (1) - 12,910 - - (12,910) -
Disposals RE - (3,544) (7,107) (1,592) - (12,243)
Surplus on revaluation & ff & 8

(Note 11(a)) (BiE11a) 174,384 - - - - 174,384
Less: elimination of il - Ll 2514 &

accumulated
depreciation (24,663) - - - - (24,663)
At 31 December 2011 R=E——F
+ZRA=+t—-H 1,044,777 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 1,497,964
Representing: H:
Cost N - 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 453,187
Valuation - 2011 BE-ZZF—F 1,044,777 - - - - 1,044,777
1,044,777 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 1,497,964
Accumulated RE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 R-E——F
—HA—H 1,417 46,245 17,906 1,864 - 67,432
Exchange adjustments [E i 38 % 546 4,914 3,126 335 - 8,921
Additions through BRRERELR

acquisition of IINE

subsidiaries (Hz30)

(Note 30) - 26,686 12,557 1,022 - 40,265
Charge for the year ~ FEIE 22,700 28,729 7,561 2,583 - 61,573
Written back on iR e

disposals - (2,477) (4,681) (123) - (7,281)
Elimination on i

revaluation (24,663) - - - - (24,663)
At 31 December 2011 R=8——%

+ZA=1+-H - 104,097 36,469 5,681 - 146,247
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R=F——%

+tZA=1+—-H 1,044,777 230,492 49,503 4,392 22,553 1,351,717

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13

14

FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Revaluation of leasehold land and buildings

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use
carried at fair value were revalued on 31 December
2011 based on direct comparison method by reference
to recent market transactions in comparable properties.
The valuations were carried out by a qualified surveyor
who is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The revaluation
surplus, net of tax, of HK$130,788,000 has been
recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group
Trademark-use-rights
HK$'000
AEEHEEAE
FAT
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE-—ZTF—H—AH 240,365
Addition through acquisitions FRWENBARCAE
of subsidiaries 162,834
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZFTF+=-_A=+—H 403,199
Addition through acquisition FRWERBARIZAE
of subsidiaries (Note 30) (K1zE30) 89,310
At 31 December 2011 R_ZE——F+_-_A=+—8H 492,509
Accumulated impairment losses: RItRESE:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 W_E-—ZTF-—HF—HB ZZ-F
and 31 December 2011 F+-_A=+—"HERZZE—F
+ZA=+—H -
Carrying amount: BRTEE :
At 31 December 2011 N-—_EBE——F+=-_B=+—H 492,509
At 31 December 2010 W_E-—ZTHF+-HA=+—H 403,199

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

tEeREEERARAT |

13 EEEE (&)

HETHEREFZEM
AEERHEEACHEL W RETF
ER-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—8%
NABEEFGHE TELXEAJELR
MEZAEMERIBEBEEZLR
FETER - ZEHEIHE—RBER
BHEMBEee BT HMBEYE
WERER A LSRG ER
Bl EMET - EHMAHK (HNBRHHIE)
130,788,000 0 LE KRB EZE =T
——F+ZA=+t—BHIFEHME
AW AT AERL R AKREEY
XEHHEEAN

4 BEEE
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B %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
The Group
HK$'000
rEH
FAT
Cost: )%
At 1 January 2010 fﬁ(‘_ T—TF—H—H 1,086,827
Addition through acquisitions of subsidiaries FB W ER B AR ZAE 324,355
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZFF+_-_AF=+—H 1,411,182
Addition through acquisition FRWERBRARZARE (FFF30)
of subsidiaries (Note 30) 266,466
At 31 December 2011 R—F——%+ZA=+—H 1,677,648
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt REESSE:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 N_E-FEFE-F—-—H —E—ZFTFE+_H
and 31 December 2011 =t—-Bk=FT——F+ZA=+—-H . 329,573
Carrying amount: BRTEE :
At 31 December 2011 R-B-——%+ZA=+—8H 1,348,075
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+_A=+—H 1,081,609
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating ﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l—ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ZEE/&ﬂ&ﬂ
units identified according to the department store and BGEBIEEANER 2 2 HRR
supermarket operations acquired as follows: BEABEN:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZF
FERT FAT
Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company a2 S TERHD BR A A
Limited (“Ginwa Bell Tower") ([&fEEZ]) 757,254 757,254
Golden Chance (Xi'an) Limited (“GCX") Golden Chance (Xi'an)
Limited ([GCX ) 324,355 324,355
Ideal Mix Limited (”Ideal Mix") Ideal Mix Limited ( [Ideal
(see Note 30) Mix 1) (B HKf7E30) 266,466 -
1,348,075 1,081,609

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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B %5 R R MY &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 & (&)

Impairment loss

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
acquired 76.43% equity interests in Ginwa Bell Tower
for a consideration of HK$1,091.1 million. The excess of
the cost of purchase over the net fair value of Ginwa Bell
Tower’s identifiable net assets of HK$1,086.8 million was
recorded as goodwill and allocated to the department
store operations of Ginwa Bell Tower. At 31 December
2008, due to the global economic crisis, the directors
of the Company have determined that the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit which the goodwill
related to was less than its carrying value by HK$329.6
million, and accordingly, an impairment loss of the same
amount was provided in 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
acquired 100% equity interests in GCX for a total
consideration of HK$458.6 million. The excess of the cost
of purchase over the net fair value of GCX’s identifiable
net assets of HK$324.4 million was recorded as goodwill
and allocated to the department store operations of
GCX.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
acquired 100% equity interests in Ideal Mix for a total
consideration of HK$389.5 million (see Note 30). The
excess of the cost of purchase over the net fair value
of Ideal Mix’s identifiable net assets of HK$266.5
million was recorded as goodwill and allocated to the
department store and supermarket operations of Ideal
Mix.

The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit
was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2010: 2%), which is
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The growth rate used does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the cash
generating unit operates. The cash flows are discounted
using discount rates ranged from 13% to 14% (2010:
7%). The discount rates used are pre-taxed and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash generating
units.

tEeREEERARAT |

BEEE
REE-TEN\F+A=+—H1t
FEAREBLAARET,091,100,00058
TS L iEE76.43% M - BB E K
RS IEEER A 5 & EF R
1,086,800,000/8 7T ' i S & R JIETE
EEYHREESIEEENTERGE
B-RZEENF+=ZA=+—H"

HRERKEEEH ARAARESEE
ERHERBENESEEEMA KD
© B H IR E 2 14329,600,0007%8
Al ZARSERREEER
ZETN\FEIREE-

HE-_ZT—ZTF+A=+—H1t
FE RSB ER{E4L58,600,000
BITHEGCXZ 25 RE - B E KA
BGCXWAIH# B EEFRB 2 AN BEF
%18 1324,400,000/8 70 ZEEETY
HEBBE Y SR EGIXZBEEHE
ﬁ% °

REz—_ZE——F+=-_A=+—H1t
FE - AEFWHEIdeal Mix2Z 2 3%
7 5 E389,500,0005% 7t ( &B
5£30) ° B B X A #lIdeal MixZ 7] i
Bl & EE ¥ 58266,500,00078 T A H &6
DEHEEEY H B Eldeal MixZ B E
NE| MEBRTHER-

IR & B A B Y B] U (0] B EE T IR (5 R
BEFEMETC - E@AEEDNEAIR
BARNRZEER A FEM GRS
BEAEENESRERATE @
AFEHZRERENEAMGINET
HRERIN (D —TF 1 2%)i
THE WRETERMES 2TER -
FrRAgE REW N BaRSEEBAM
g RPFHIERE- RS
MEFABRENTRI3%E14%
—T—TF 7% )#EITERIR - FTERA
Z BRI SRR ATALIR K B xR 145
MRS RELEMZEERR-
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: impairment loss

otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

16 RMBRARAZRE

LR - R AME
R RIEY k=

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

or liabilities of the Group.

Place of
establishment
and operations

Name of company
DNEEH

Ginwa Bell Tower* PRC

tEEERNERAA FE

Century Ginwa Urumai PRC
Shopping Mall Company
Limited*

HEETESEAEBNH L
BRAT]

Shaanxi Century Ginwa PRC
Tangrenjie Shopping HE
Mall Company Limited
("Ginwa Tangrenjie”)*

(Note 31)

REtLEEEANGHSA
BEARA([EEEA
1) (Hzt31)

RAURERBH

Particulars of
registered and
paid up capital

EEfRAR

eS¢

Renminbi ("RMB")
235,500,000
ARE(TAR%])
235,500,0007C

RMB50,000,000
AR¥
50,000,0007t

RMB20,000,000
AR
20,000,0007C

The Company

ENN
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-—-F Z—T-ZF
TRERT THET
468,916 458,630
(1 (M
468,915 458,629

TREHINTIZZEAEEEE &
~F

EHBEZH B LR

Proportion of ownership interest

The Group's
effective
interest
rEEZ
ERER

76.43%

100%

100%

Annual Report 2011

BREERLA

Held by the
Company

HADARE

Held by a Principal
subsidiary activities

MHEARARE TERE

76.43% Operation of
department
store

BERERT

100% Operation of
department
store

R2RERNT

100% Operation of
department
store

REBERA
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company
DNEEH

Xi'an Century Ginwa
Nandajie Shopping Mall
Company Limited*

[EEQLERE RPN )
RLBRAR

Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo
Shopping Mall Company
Limited*

REELELERED
BRAA

Xi'an Century Ginwa
Shopping Mall Company
Limited*

AL EBNERAR

Xianyang Century Ginwa
Trade and Commerce
Company Limited*

RGtLetHERRAR

Xi'an Yixin Property
Management Company
Limited*

BREENEEEERLA

Place of
establishment
and operations

RAIRERBH

PRC
PE

PRC
PE

PRC
E

PRC
P

PRC
PE

Particulars of
registered and
paid up capital

B Rz

RAEH

RMB5,000,000
N
5,000,0007C

RMB30,000,000
N
30,000,0007C

HK$65,000,000
65,000,000/ 7T

RMB3,000,000
AR
3,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000
AEH
60,000,0007C

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

Proportion of ownership interest

The Group's
effective
interest
xEEZ
ERER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

* The English translation of the names of these companies
are for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

BREERLA

Held by the
Company

HEDARA

Held by a
subsidiary

R NGIESE -

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

16 RHMBLRRZRE (&)

Principal
activities

TERE

Operation of
department
store

ERENRT

4

s

«

pesl|

H

Operation of
department
store

ERERR

PR

.

sl

B

Operation of
department
store

BERERT

Operation of
department
stores and
supermarkets

BERENAR
BRm5

Properties
management

mEEE

» RAZEXELEHBEZEA
A2 EREBUF X BE
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

17 LOAN RECEIVABLES

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

17 BERER

Loan receivable from a related party FEUSEEE A T E K
(Note (i) (K1aE3))
Loan receivable (Note (i) e E (K aEi))

Less:

current portion of loan receivables & : fEUWEFUR B E 1D
classified as trade and other DB RBIRR
receivables T E 4t U 5k

Notes:

()

(ii)

Loan receivable from a related party represented a loan
granted to Ginwa Investment Company Limited (“Ginwa
Investment”), a related party of the Group, and was part
of the assets acquired in the Group’s acquisition of Ginwa
Bell Tower in 2008. The principal balance of the loan is
RMB739.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$912.7
million). The loan is secured by convertible notes issued
by the Company to Best Mineral Resources Limited,
one of the Company’s equity shareholders, (the “BMRL
Notes”, see Note 25) and certain investments in equity
securities owned by Ginwa Investment, and is repayable
on 31 August 2013. Of the loan balance at 31 December
2011 is an amount of RMB351.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$433.0 million) (2010: RMB351.0
million, equivalent to approximately HK$412.5 million)
bearing interest at a rate of 6.90% per annum (2010:
6.22% per annum).

At 31 December 2010, loan receivable from a third
party comprised an unsecured loan of RMB1.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.1 million), bearing
interest at 7.839% per annum and was originally
scheduled to be repayable on 31 August 2011. In 2011,
the repayment of this loan is extended to 30 June 2012
with all other terms remained unchanged.

Annual Report 2011

ff et -

()

(i)

The Group

EE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-——-% —Z-2F
THET THETT
805,458 681,174
- 3,526
805,458 684,700
- (3,526)
805,458 681,174

JERBEEBEBALERITIR_ZZEN
FRFEEREBRART ([£7E
wE]) (XEEBZBEEALIZE
FoWwAAEBKRECICEEPRA
WHEZEMEE-ZERZA TR
A ANR¥739,900,0005T (1R
BN #1912,700,0000 7T ) c 5% B &
B AR R AAR A Z B EZ —Best
Mineral Resources Limited3% 1T a]
A% Z % ([BMRLEH | - B Kt 525)
LEetREMBEERABZ R Z2ET
REEEREREAR-_Z—=ZFN
A=+—HEE-REREHEE
PEHE - —Ft+-_A=+—
H &% A AR¥351,000,0007T
(88 M 49433,000,000% 1) (=
T T4 AR¥351,000,0007T
(B8R 49412,500,00058 7T) ) THft
BEBE690% (—E—ZTHE:5F
6.22% ) °

R-ZE—-TE+_A=+—8"
JEWRE =7 E R E— 188K
B3 A R%1,800,0007T (FHE R
492,100,000/ L) ' Z ERREF
7.839%st B NRER T ——F N\
A=+—HEEZE-BEZEENE
EHE-_T——FXxA=+H"'m
B EA IR R 35 T8 o
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

18 INVENTORIES 18 #&
The Group
rEH

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ET-FF
FERT FHET
Merchandises 5 97,705 38,418
Low value consumables K18 5 # @ 5,800 5,070
103,505 43,488
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRARIZWINAGERERZTFE

an expense and included in the consolidated income RIEATWOT

statement is as follows:
The Group
AEE

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
TER FHET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREA 397,294 191,739

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19 AEHHESHMEE

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
—E2——F —E-ZF
FHET TFHET
Unlisted available-for-sale debt securities FELrmoHEEEKRES 66,945 -

HELHELERERAT | —B——FFH
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 BIERR R H BB R E R
PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A MEARZREZFEMNNKE
SUBSIDIARY
(a) Trade and other receivables (a) FEWERR & H it E UK

The Group The Company
AEE b YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—-F —Z-ZF —E——F —E-ZF
TERT FiBT FHET FET
Trade receivable JEWE =R
from third parties 42,168 29,439 - -
Less: allowance for B REREIE
doubtful debts (L)
(Note (ii)) (3,518) (3,352) - -
38,650 26,087 - -
Amounts due from Y A TR
related parties (i & i) )
(Note (iii)) 46,781 27,537 - -
Amounts due from R NEIE S

subsidiaries (Note (iv))  (ffzE(iv)) -
Less: allowance for W REREE
doubtful debts (FtaLa)
(Note (i) -

1,695,838 1,706,916

(20,820) (24,503)

- - 1,675,018 1,682,413

Prepayments, deposits ~ FBfIFIE - RE R HE

and other receivables i JE U R 197,264 103,368 82,397 382
282,695 156,992 1,757,415 1,682,795
Except for deposits of HK$4,119,000 (2010: BriZ £4,119,0008 L (=& —
HK$637,000), all of the trade and other receivables are T4 1 637,000/ T ) 4N Fr A JE
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses LT Bl R e L At 8 LSRR T ER A S —
within one year. FRWESHERRBZH -
Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note REEZ EEBRFIEEHNW T
32(a). 32(a) °

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of
the reporting period:

Less than 1 month DR —1E A

More than 1 month —{EALA LB D
but less than 3 months

More than 3 months ={EAKE

Trade receivables that were not impaired mainly
relate to credit card centres owned by financial
institutions for whom there were no recent history
of default and have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade and other receivables
directly (See Note 2(j)(i)).

20 BWIRAR KR HBWRER
@gﬁﬁZEﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬁ

(a) EWREMREMBYRR (&)
Fff &t -

(i) MREDH
FT AU R R K B R MR 2
EYSRR (BB REREE)
MRIERRZBRE T

The Group
KEE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
FERT FET
32,243 21,214
R=1E A
1,178 3,813
5,229 1,060
38,650 26,087

WA EUARRE R EA
MBHRBRAZERRTLE
RN S 2 R SR G h 4 )
ik B EASEA RIF A
- RBBERLR EIEE
BEHE RZESERERER
B REKEEERYEEK
WERRRBEDT 2EHK
[B] o 7 6% (8] 36 4% 5L 5% F SRR
BERER R

(i) FEUERRREEKKZRE
SR R % L At MUK 2 BB
EEEABERCE XK
ERABEFR RS
BT REBEIEZEREK
BRI EL A W sk it 8 ( R R
F2()(0)) ©

tEeREEERARAT |
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SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A

(a) Trade and other receivables (continued)

(ii) Impairment of trade and other receivables

(continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year are as follows:

At 1 January

Exchange adjustments

Additions through
acquisition of
subsidiaries

Reversal of impairment

losses

At 31 December

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

20 BWARM K H KRR R
fﬁs’/}ﬁ ZREZENRIE

(a) FEWRRM R AW (&)

et - (&)
(i) EURRRRELERRZEE
(#&)
FRZREBEEZSHOT
The Group The Company
rEHE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-ZF =E——fF —E-EF
FERT FHET THET TETT
mn—HA—H 3,352 3,244 24,503 31,500
I 5 S 166 108 - -
BB B
NAZARE
2,850 - - -
B EDREEE
(2,850) - (3,683) (6,997)
»+=A
=+—H 3,518 3,352 20,820 24,503

(iii) Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

(iv) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

(b) Prepayment for investment in a subsidiary

As 31 December 2011, the prepayment for
investment in a subsidiary represented an amount
prepaid for the Group’s intended acquisition of the
entire equity interests in Shaanxi Qianhui Company

Limited (“Qianhui”) (see Note 36(a)). The acquisition
was completed on 16 January 2012.

Annual Report 2011

(i) FEWBIEANLTRE
FEUR B A LIRS E R
% 8 Ko b B [B) T AR AN o

(iv) FEUWHKEARRE

M5 BT 188 % B) SRR A AR
% 8 R b B [B) 7 AR AN o

(b) RMBATIZREZTENRIE
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8"
RHBRRZIE Z BN FRIETY
FEE TR AR BRI PR 7 T 1E
EXBRAR([TE]) 22
A (R KT sE36(a)) o 2 IXUREE
EER_T——F—F+XBB
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand %4: & B 7R 0%
in the consolidated T8 T IR1T4
statement of financial FEHES
position

=
3

B IRTRRRE
(HEEa))

Less: restricted cash at
bank (Note (i)

Cash and cash equivalents 28R ERERZ
in the consolidated cash R4 &BLZHE
flow statement I8 H

Note:

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

21 REeRBEELEEER

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—¥__F -T_Th -¥__F -2_2%
THERT FHET FET FHET
236,012 115,101 442 2,954
(116,279) -
119,733 115,101
it 5t -

(i) Restricted cash at bank represented bank deposits pledged
to secure the Group’s long-term bank loan (see Note

23(b)).

The Group’s operations of department stores and
supermarkets in the PRC are conducted in RMB. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of
RMB out of the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.

() RITRMBESIIERITEREN
RBAKBERYBRITESEER (R
Mi5E23(b)) ©

AEBRFPEAE R MBRETS
RERBTIAARKEET ARBR
FEMEBRER MEPEHELAR
W BE SR 78 X BT AR e 0 A B SN

B AR R R AR DI AT AR IR o
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

otes to the financial statements

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

22 YRR H Ath B Y K

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —Z=2—ZF ZEBE—— —ZT—IZTF
FExT FAT FET FET
Trade payable arising from: FE{HEEFNE LA T &8
EA:
— Concession sales —BFFEEHE 601,143 337,731 - -
— Purchase of -BERE
inventories 83,281 21,702 - -
684,424 359,433 - -
Amounts due to related  FE{TEIE A+ 518
parties (Note (i) (K1aE@)) 107,291 30,047 20,008 -
Amounts due to FERT I B A B FRIAE
subsidiaries (Note (i) (BaEd)) - - 7,235 452,655
Other payables and Hfh e R FEET B
accrued expenses ==t 295,339 232,801 17,179 9,429
Financial liabilities REHEK AT EZ 2
measured at amortised BB &
cost 1,087,054 622,281 44,422 462,084
Derivative financial PTEERITA
instruments (Note 25(ii)) ~ ( HfzE25(ii)) - 1,808 - 1,808
Deferred income TEITU A 9,039 4,085 - -
Receipts in advance TE W KB 553,530 569,929 - -
1,649,623 1,198,103 44,422 463,892

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as revenue within one year or are

P FE A BR K B E At FE A SRR B 10
—FREEINRBRELER/I

repayable on demand. Ae

Note: Bzt

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (i) ZEZBEAEEKE RELTE
have no fixed terms of repayment. TEERHE

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other payables are trade payable

with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period:

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

AR R EMmENRK (#)
fRi#R 2 T

At AR R R R A FE A 32 FE A B
RRBEHRZFEOTAOT

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F —ZET-FF
THER FHT
Due within one month or on demand R—1E A W R B st Bk
S 684,424 359,433
23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 23 RITRAEMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans () AEREZEHBRITRAMENR
are analysed as follows: FHm:
The Group
FEE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
— —E-FF
TER FHET
Bank loans: RITER:
— Guaranteed by related parties —HEEALTER 46,811 45,773
— Guaranteed by a related party and — B8 A &R R LA
secured by properties of related EAT 2 EERE
parties 31,175 55,271
— Guaranteed by a third party —HmE=FER 6,167 -
84,153 101,044
Add: current portion of long-term  fn: RKEIRITRHMER
bank and other loans 2 BN EREL 17 22,147 48,327
106,300 149,371




otes to the financial statements
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 23 RITRHEMBER (&)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) XEBZRHAKRITREMER
are analysed as follows: W
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
TR FHET
Bank loans: RITER:
— Secured by properties and bank —AREE Y ERIRIT
deposits of the Group (Note (i) R EER IR (BF3E()) 471,140 237,974
Other loan: HuER:
— Secured by properties —NBEA T ZWE
of a related party 1R 4 - 27,174
471,140 265,148
Less: current portion of long-term  J&: ERHIRITREMER
bank and other loans Z BNEAER 19 (22,147) (48,327)
448,993 216,821
Note: Bt &t
() At 31 December 2011, the long-term bank loan is iy MNZEBE——F+-_A=+—

secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
and bank deposits (see Note 21(i)). The aggregate
carrying value of the secured properties amounted
to HK$931.3 million at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$745.1 million).

A EHETETIUAELER
ZHELHREFRIRITRH
R M FE21¢) ) B4 48 -
R-E——F+_-_A=+—
A ERMWEZEERRER
931,300,000 L (ZF—=F
£ :745,100,0005% 7T ) °

The long-term bank and other loans are repayable REJIRIT R E A E AR T 5 H

as follows: IEE -
The Group
AEE

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F —E-FF

FET FATT

Within 1 year or on demand —FE RN R E K 22,147 48,327

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMRFENRN 20,571 21,153

After 2 years but within 5 years MFEBERFERN 161,325 63,460

After 5 years hF#& 267,097 132,208

471,140 265,148

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans
are analysed as follows: (continued)

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised cost. At 31 December
2011, none of the non-current interest-bearing
borrowings is expected to be settled within one
year. In 2011, the Group repaid the long-term bank
loan of HK$238.0 million at 31 December 2010 in
order to obtain additional financings from another
financial institution.

(c) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
32(b). At 31 December 2011, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other loans had been
breached (2010: HK$Nil).

24 UNSECURED NOTES

On 3 December 2010, the Company issued unsecured
notes with a principal amount of HK$138.7 million as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of the 100%
equity interests in GCX. The unsecured notes are non-
interest bearing and maturing on 3 December 2012.

In 2011, the Company redeemed an aggregate principal
amount of HK$54.3 million of the unsecured notes at
par with cash as a consideration. The difference between
the carrying amount of the unsecured notes redeemed
and the related principal amount of HK$11.4 million was
debited to capital reserve within equity as a distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company.

tEeREERRARAR |

23 RITREMER (4)

(b) XEEZRBE\TREMER
DM (&)
FT & JERNHAGT B8 k5 i 85
MAEAR - R=_E—F+=_A
=+—8 #$EENHE EER
EHER—FRBE-RZ_Z
—F AEEEEN_ZT—F
F+-_A=+—HZEHETE
3X238,000,0007 7T ' JA A1 E Ath
S EEEISREINEE -

(o) XEBETRITERABRTR
HeBMEBITLZMELHT
Pt kRl SL 2 55 o i AR R (B
RZFEReH BRGARERE
B AEBEHEREETZE
R BN - BRAARBEERR
BE LR 2 — S BN
#320) R ZTE——F+=A
=t—H #EERTLREME
ARG EER (ZF—
TFETELT) -

4 BEHARE

R-ZZB—ZE+-_R=0 &~ a5
177K % 58 /4138,700,0007% 7T 7 £ 1K
HEE  EAWEBGCXE I E ~ I
HPRE -BEBERETFHELBER
—E——F+_A=HIH-

R-_ZT——F AREIUEREARE
R E B B A 5 A £ 554,300,000
FETT 2 IR IR R o B O K 1R 2
BrERAEREEASRBZEZRA
11,400,000 70 E5T ARAEE &
AEE AEBARRRIBREDIK -
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 25 TRRERE
The Group’s convertible notes are analysed as follows: REBZABRBREZETAOT -
Derivative Derivative
Derivative ~ components ~ components
Liability =~ components - conversion - redemption
components - call options options options Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fTaEHm- fTEHM- fTEHR-
SEHH ABLE b0 ) BEHE @t
TET AR AR TAR TET
At 1 January 2010 W-2-2£-f-H 856,771 (44,612) - - 812,159
Convertible notes issued on - R—E—FF+_-A=H
3 December 2010 B hkEE
(Note 25(ii) (Hiat25(i)) 418,265 - 208,144 260,591 887,000
Amount classified as derivative D8 BITEH KT A
financial instrument ks (2,558) - - - (2,558)
Redemption FRED
during the year (12,425) 641 - - (11,784)
Offset with loan receivable &L & 3148 3 (458,478) 60,973 - - (397,505)
Extinguishment BEREZMRLER
and recognition
of the BMRL Notes (47,832) (12,863) - - (60,695)
Accrued finance charges for  REE BB R H
the year 82,054 - - - 82,054
Fair value changes onthe T4 EH 2 A A EEE
derivative components - (124,696) 103,019 (11,892) (33,569)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
+-A=1+-H 835,797 (120,557) 311,163 248,699 1,275,102
Convertible notes issued on - RZZ——FMF+/1H
19 April 2011 Bz URRER
(Note 25(ii)) (Ba£250) 299,847 - - 146,268 446,115
Convertible notes issued on R=F——FH A=+
24 May 2011 BETTBRRER
(Note 25(ii)) (B a2 250i)) 58,230 (10,820) 88,073 - 135,483
Conversion during the year & ( ff325(v))
(Note 25(iv)) (457,974) 57,365 (78,164) (88,037) (566,810)
Extinguishment and BERERTARE
recognition of covertible — (#f&£25(i))
notes (Note 25(if) (168,749) - (16) 83,044 (85,721)
Interest paid FABRHME
during the year (33,625) - - - (33,625)
Accrued finance charges for £ e 5817 % it
the year 159,492 - - - 159,492
Fair value changes onthe  $TAEH 2 AR EZE)
derivative components - 46,398 (262,595) 9,531 (206,666)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=+-H 693,018 (27,614) 58,461 399,505 1,123,370

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

On 19 September 2008, the Company has issued
unsecured convertible notes with an aggregate face value
of HK$1,231.6 million, bearing interest at 2.75% per
annum and maturing on 18 September 2013 to BMRL,
one of the Company’s equity shareholders, i.e. the BMRL
Notes.

Upon issuance, the holder of the BMRL Notes could, at
any time up till 18 September 2013, convert the BMRL
Notes into the Company’s shares at HK$0.689 per share
(i.e. the equity component). The Company has the right
to redeem the BMRL Notes in whole or in part at any
time before the maturity date at its face value (i.e. the
call option). The call option is classified as derivative
financial instrument and has been included in the balance
of convertible notes in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In 2010, as a result of the Company’s
rights issue, the conversion price of the BMRL Notes was
adjusted to HK$0.54 per share.

On 3 December 2010, a principal amount of the BMRL
Notes of HK$544.2 million has been used to offset a
portion of the loan receivable due from Ginwa Investment
(see Note 17). At the same time, the holder of the
BMRL Notes has agreed to amend the terms of the
BMRL Notes from interest bearing at 2.75% per annum
to non-interest bearing. As the change represented a
substantial modification to the terms of the BMRL Notes,
the remaining BMRL Notes has been accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial instrument and
the recognition of a new financial instrument.

On 3 December 2010, the Company has issued unsecured
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$887.0 million, bearing interest at 3% per annum
and maturing on 2 December 2015 to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. (the “Hony
Convertible Notes"”).

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

25 ARRFEE (&)

Wit

()

(ii)

RZZEZENFALATILA KRAA
BT EEA1,231,600,000
BITIREE2.75% BT ER =
—=FNA+NBEBEREARRQF
f&ERBMRLZ M Al Rk = 5% - AD
BMRLE I -

REEATER  BMRLEE Z #H AR R
ZE—=FNA+NBE A E AR
1% 9 f%0.6897% JT 1§ BMRLEE & 5 #2
BAERNEZEMD (BEZEIBMD) o &
NE AR E B ATRE R 2 303
D EEBIBMRLE I (BN REEHAME) -
RENESBEATESCRT AT D
Wt AR B B ISR &R 2 AT AR 22
BB -NZE—ZF RERAZ
iR i&  BMRLEB c BHREFHESR
FAR0.547% 7T °

MN-T—FF+=-A=H BMRLE
& 2 7K 4 %8544,200,00078 7T &
FBERIEEN SR E 2 BHEK
(RMIFE17) o A - BMRLEIE 2 #F
B ANE R EENBMRLEE 2§
T HRREE2.75%H RN BRE -
A Z B E)EE R ¥ BMRLEE (&K
ZEXNER W TBMRLERE A
EAEERSRM TENERFT SR
TH-

R-ZZE—ZTFE+-_A=H &x27
B 81T 428K M8 4887,000,00075 T
EEF3I% T BEBER_TE—RHEF
+ = A= HEH S EHony Capital
Fund 2008 GP, LP2EHAWBE R
Al Z S AT AR 2= % ([Hony Rl #2
fE®]) -
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Upon issuance, the holder of the Hony Convertible Notes
can, at any time up till 2 December 2015, convert the
Hony Convertible Notes into the Company’s shares at
HK$0.275 per share (i.e. the conversion option). The
holder of the Hony Convertible Notes also has a right to
require the Company to redeem the Hony Convertible
Notes in whole or in part at any time from 3 December
2013 till the maturity date at its face value plus a pre-
determined premium (i.e. the redemption option). Both
the conversion and redemption options are classified as
derivative financial instruments and have been included
in the balance of convertible notes in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In addition to the above, a derivative financial instrument
related to an option granted to the holder of the Hony
Convertible Notes on 3 December 2010 was recognised
and included in trade and other payables (see Note 22)
at 31 December 2010. This option entitled the holder of
the Hony Convertible Notes to subscribe for additional
convertible notes to be issued by the Company of up to
HK$443.5 million, where the major terms and conditions
would be substantially the same as the Hony Convertible
Notes issued on 3 December 2010. On 19 April 2011, the
holder of the Hony Convertible Notes has exercised this
option and subscribed for additional convertible notes
with an aggregate face value of HK$443.5 million which
mature on 18 April 2016 (the “Hony Convertible Notes
).

On 31 October 2011, the holder of the Hony Convertible
Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes Il has agreed to
amend the terms of the Hony Convertible Notes and the
Hony Convertible Notes Il from interest bearing at 3% per
annum to non-interest bearing. As the change represented
a substantial modification to the terms of the Hony
Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes I, the
Hony Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes Il
have been accounted for as extinguishment of the original
financial instruments and the recognition of new financial
instruments.

On 24 May 2011, the Company has issued unsecured
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$94.5 million, bearing interest at 1.5% per annum
and maturing on 24 May 2014 to Grand Well Group
Limited (“Grand Well”) as part of the consideration on
the acquisition of Ideal Mix (the “Grand Well Convertible
Notes”) (see Note 30).
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(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

25 AEKRREE (&)
At ()

(iii)

PRAEEITEF  HonyA IR ZIE 235 H
ARZE—RAF+ZAZHAE
{a] 5 fE] 4% B 1%0.27578 T #5 Hony AJ
BREEERAAQR 2D (A
BB ERME) o HonyRl AR 245 2 45
EATEBEREREARANRE T
—=F+_-A=R#EEFHE ILE
IR IEREEN LELEE
B 5 15 B [0 2 26 3K 2617 Hony AT 2 A%
SR (BNEE R ARAE ) - SR HAAE K R
CIHESSBATESM T AT
BHESEVBRR KRN RRZE
KRR e

B EMEN HERTFR-E—F
F+ A =HZHonya [ % =ik 2
BEAZ - BRERBH 2 —IEIT
ST AEERRTARE—
TFE+-_AZt+—HZEMEZR
Hab A (R M E22)  ZRERE
EHony | MR EBF B ABERE
RNARHEEETT 2 &% 443,500,000/7%8
U BEANET IR AR AR T i BT
HEFXZRZERGEHEENR_T—Z
F+Z A=HE1T 2HonyrA[ # %
ERABHER - R -_ZT——%MA
+ B Honyrl R ZEE Z#HE A
BITEZRAEE RBEEEES
443,500,000/ 8 LW R =Z—RF
WA+ NBEEZEN] BT
(THony [ #ABR &I ) ©

RZE——F+HA=+—H " Hony
A4 RE Z 4 K Hony Al #2 A% Z 15112
HE ABREERTHony ] % ik
R Hony AJ AR E 1R 112 530 1§F 2
3%IEEI REE -BHRZEEEE
M Hony AJ 2% =& K Hony ] 1% 5=
B IMERR 2 EARIEER - B Hony AT #2 %
Z & RHony Al R ZIRIE 71| BR &1
AEERELRIT AN ERAAT S
BT A

RZE——FRAZ-+WMABE - AR
A B {78 R M8 &£94,500,000
BT EF1.5% BT ER =
T-NERA-+MAIHRE
Grand Well Group Limited ([ Grand
Well |) 2 @E Rk EE
(IGrand WellAJ#2 g Z 4 |) - LAE
AU EEIdeal Mixz 280K ME (R H
£¥30) o
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

Upon issuance, the Company has the right to redeem the
Grand Well Convertible Notes in whole or in part at any
time before the maturity date at its face value (i.e. the
call option). The holder of the Grand Well Convertible
Notes can, at any time up till 24 May 2014, convert the
Grand Well Convertible Notes into the Company’s shares
at HK$0.40 per share (i.e. the conversion option). Both
the call and conversion options are classified as derivative
financial instruments and have been included in the
balance of convertible notes in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

On 28 June 2011 and 28 September 2011, the holder
of the Hony Convertible Notes converted notes with
an aggregate face value of HK$305.0 million into
1,109,090,908 shares of the Company. Upon completion
of the conversion of the Hony Convertible Notes, the
amount of HK$110.9 million, representing the par
value, was credited to the Company’s share capital. The
difference between the carrying amount of the converted
Hony Convertible Notes and the par value of HK$212.9
million was credited to the share premium amount.

On 18 August 2011 and 31 October 2011, the holder of
the BMRL Notes converted notes with an aggregate face
value of HK$369.0 million into 683,333,332 shares of
the Company. Upon completion of the conversion of the
BMRL Notes, the amount of HK$68.3 million, representing
the par value, was credited to the Company’s share
capital. The difference between the carrying amount of
the converted BMRL Notes and the par value of HK$174.7
million was credited to the share premium amount. In
addition, HK$86.0 million of the equity component of the
BMRL Notes has been transferred from the capital reserve
to the share premium amount in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(m).

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

25 AERKRREE (&)
Wit ()

(iv)

REITR - ARRBENEIHER
1] I [ 42 EL BR T (B FE 2] 2 3B =k 3P
3 Grand Wella[ # ik Z 4 (1R 8
HAHE) o Grand Well AJ#IR Z 15 v 5
EAARZZE—NMFRAZ+MA
AR B e 2 B A% 0.40/8 7T Grand
WellFJ IR RIE 8 B AR A R 2 R
f (BNE A ER#E ) - R ERfE I 4R
HEYSEATESM T AT BIE
TREVBRAROTBRREELS
BRA o

RZE——F A=+ NANBEZ
T——H N A=+ /\H Honyd
REREBCHEAEKREERES
51305,000,000/8 Jt v ZiF 5 A&
1,109,090,908% A 2 &) & i % o 1
FEAK bt 5 # Hony AT R i 4k 1% -
&4 51110,900,0007% 7T 2 A B
FIVEARRBIIEA o B 8 # 2 Honyd]
BREBECEEAEEABEERE
212,900,000/ 7T * ABRZIVERR 17 )&
Bk

R—_E——FNA+N\BE=_=E
——F+A=+—H BMRLEEH
B AE 9 E 4 % £369,000,000
BLZEBRBRAEARARAZ
683,333,332/ & 19 o 1A FT Ak &2 4%
BMRLE & &5 + /B A 568,300,000
BILEARIMERRRI ZBRA-B
#it 7 BMRLER 2 IRAEHEMEE
KA 1E174,700,00078 7T 0 ABRIIERR
E B B9 BMRLEE 2 # 25
=015 /86,000,00078 7T B 1R 15 M
E2MZ ERT R ERAREEE A
f& 19 m B R o
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Fair value of the derivative components

The estimate of the fair value of the derivative
components of the above convertible notes are measured
based on a binomial lattice model. Details of the
assumptions used are as follows:

25

Derivative component of ~ Derivative components of the Hony

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

RBRE (2)
TTEBBZARE
ERERBRREZSTESBZ AR E
st DR - AAME R BB
RAATRERR 2 BT

Derivative components of
Derivative components of the Hony  the Grand Well Convertible
Convertible Notes Il Notes
Grand Well TRREE 2674
HonyT & REE 1124 54 ik}

3171212010 31112/2011  31/10/2011  19/04/2011  31/12/2011  24/05/2011

2R tA BA = il
=t-8  =t-8 the Zt-B  ZTBH

036 041 0.77 036 0.56
0275 0.275 0275 0400 0400
N/A N/A NA~ 66.009%  76.556%

TR TER  TER
430years  447years  5.00years  240vyears  3.00 years
430% 447% 5005 2405 3.00F
430years  447years  5.00years  240vyears  3.00 years
430% 447% 5005 2405 3.00F

the BMRL Notes Convertible Notes
BMRLEE 2 T4 313 HonyAl &R EE 2 T £ B4
Date of valuation 3171212011 31112/2010  31/12/2011  31/10/2011
f#ERS RZB--F RZ2-3F R2B--5 R2B--F N22-3F W2%--F No%--F No%--F NoR--F NoB--f
tZh TZh = 1A tZh
=t-8  =t-B Zt-AB =t-B =t-AH
Share price (HKS) RE(ET) 036 0.70 0.36 0.41 0.70
Exercise price (HK9) TEE (BT) 0.54 0.54 0.275 0275 0275
Bxpected volatiity BHRE 60021%  79659%  72.959%  72228%  82.011%
Dividend yeild REx - - - - -
Maturity period ERER 172years  272years  3.93years  4.09years  4.93years
12§ 2NE 3935 4.09% 4935
Conversion period il 172years  272years  393years  4.09years  4.93 years
112§ LN 3935 4.09% 493%
Discount rate fra% 15243%  8539%  22480%  2033%  23397%

2255%  20430%  20.926% 19.657% 19.609%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the derivative components), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Dividend yield are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 November 2001, whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees and service providers of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at HK$1 to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share options granted in 2010 do not have
a vesting condition and are exercisable within a period of
five years. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURAIF2RS

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has a new share option scheme which was
adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees and service providers of the Group, including
directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at HK$1 to subscribe for shares of the Company.
For the options granted under this new scheme in 2011,
27,900,000 share options will vest immediately from the
date of grant, and for the remaining 148,200,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date of
grant, another 30% will vest after two years from the
date of grant, and the remaining 20% will vest after
three years from the date of grant. The share options
granted in 2011 will lapse on 20 October 2017. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in
shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the share
options granted during the reporting period
are as follows:

(&)
ARFER_E——F-_A+HBE
MEFTEBAET S B ARFES
EEERNSEHREERASEEZ R
HEm (BEAEETAKERAE
)R BTEMNATREAQR RN
ERE AR ——FIREFE
B 2B S 27,900,00017 B8
friEEea Rt BHARERGEE M
FLER T 148,200,000 BN EM S - &
YHEeaRHBPRE—FEEE -
F—30% e ERHBHRRFER
B #2T20% e RHBHE=F
“EB-RN_T——FERHNERER
FRE—+tF+AZTHERR-&
MDIBRER FHEANRERARE —
T BRI AR B EE ZHEF -

(a) RB|EHAC R L BREZIF
AR

Contractual
Number of life of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
TAEHH BEGG BRESAHB

Share options granted to

directors:
RYTES2BRE:

—on 20 October 2010 9,300,000 No vesting condition 5 years
—-R-ZTE-ZTF+H-+H Rigk::3 )RS hEF
—on 20 October 2011 21,250,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZT——F+HAZ+H BRHBEHRE—F NEF
—on 20 October 2011 12,750,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——F+H=-+H B A EREmRF NE
—on 20 October 2011 8,500,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZE——F+H_-+H BRLAME=F NE
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the share

options granted during the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

Number of
instruments
ITEHHE
Share options granted to
employees and service
providers:
BRTRERERBREMHERZE
BRAE
—on 20 October 2010 32,700,000
—-RZE—ZFTF+A=+H
—on 20 October 2011 27,900,000
-R-ZT——F+HA=+H
—on 20 October 2011 52,850,000
—-RZZE——F+HA=+H
—on 20 October 2011 31,710,000
~RB——F+A-+A
—on 20 October 2011 21,140,000

-R-ZT——F+HA=+H

Total share options granted 218,100,000
ER N B EEE

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

26 EREEEURODZINTZXRS

(%)

(a) M|EHARC R L BRE 2%

Vesting conditions

=R R

No vesting condition

I 458 57 B AR 1

No vesting condition

I 48 57 BB AR 1

One year from the date of grant
BRH BB —F

Two years from the date of grant
B & A HRE M F

Three years from the date of grant

BROARE=%F

Annual Report 2011

RREGEWMT (&)

Contractual
life of share
options

BRESHE

5 years
L
6 years
NEF
6 years
NE
6 years
NE
6 years

NEF
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
price of the share options are as follows:

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

26 EREEEUROGZINTZXRS

(&)
(b) BREZHERMEFYITE
BoT:

2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
InREF 5 ¥
TEE BREHE 1B MBIRESE
Outstanding FHEARITEE
at the beginning
of the year HK$0.315 42,000,000 HK$0.74 18,638,000
0.315/&8 7T 0.747% 7T
Granted FREHEH
during the year HK$0.49 176,100,000 HK$0.315 44,000,000
0.4958 7T 0.315%8 7T
Exercised FARABITE
during the year - - HK$0.315  (2,000,000)
0.315/8 7T
Forfeited FRERK
during the year - - HK$0.74 (18,638,000)
0.74% 7T
Outstanding at the F & ARITE
end of the year HK$0.456 218,100,000 HK$0.315 42,000,000
0.4567& 7T 0.315/%& 7T
Exercisable at the — F4& 7] F17{F
end of the year HK$0.385 69,900,000 HK$0.315 42,000,000
0.3855%& T 0.315% 7T

No share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 2,000,000 share
options were exercised, and the weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised was HK$0.71).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2011 had an exercise price of HK$0.456 (2010:
HK$0.315) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.4 years (2010: 4.8 years).

RBEE=F——FT-A=T1T-
BLtEE HMEBREESTE-
(ZZT—F4F :2,000,0001) B K&
EETE BETEBRERT
FHHBZMEFHRER. 71
BT e

RZF——F+ZA=+—HHRT
BRERE ZTTHEER04LSE T (=
T —TF:0.315870) MINEFEH %
TEXHNFHASAF (ZE—FF:48
F)o
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Black-Scholes Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise

are incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

Fair value at measurement date
Share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under the Black-
Scholes Model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the modelling
under the Black-Scholes Model)

Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate (based on the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)

BREAAERRER

AEANARE
B tn (B8
1TIE(E

EHPR IR (ARIBAA 0 7 —&F
AR HTAE B AR Y o T A 9
IR IE SR )

BEsS (REBH 7= —
TR AR I R AT A
HY DN S 19 F 351K )

BHRE
ERER AR (RIEFBIMNE

EeZB1E)
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(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

26 BEREEEURODZINTZRS

(%)

BREAARERER

PASR BB AP SR B 2 PR 1S AR TS 6V
AREBZEEREBERED
AREFE-ERHBREAR
BTHRIENA 70 — &F B AT R AL i
BE-GERURERBREZALD
FHEMARPITE 2R -

Share options
granted on
20 October

2011

R-ZB——F

+A=+H
Btz
BRE

HK$0.248
0.24838 7T
HK$0.48
0.4838 T
HK$0.49
0.497& 7T

74.131%

3.7 years

3.7F
0%

0.40%-0.73%

Share options
granted on
20 October

2010

RZZT—ZF

+A=+AH
Bz
fERR 12

HK $0.151
0.151/8 7
HK$0.31
031787
HK$0.315
0.315% 7T

85.246%

2.5 years

2.5%
0%

0.572%
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURGIF2RS

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends

(%)
() BRELAABERRBR (&)

TEHR R JYAR BRI SLOR R (IRfB
Mg i 8 T FHIETE)
AR URIBEAFAIGZERMH
RHR N8 2 I FE R B B 1 1 58
B BB B IVRIBE £ LS A

are based on historical dividends. Changes in the B -XrERINEHSHARE
subjective input assumptions could materially affect HAtERNERTE-

the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted either with or without
a service condition. This condition, if any, has not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with the share
options granted.

27 WARRANTS

On 17 August 2009, the Company issued 231,600,000
warrants at a price of HK$0.011 each to an independent
third party. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.29 per share, and the warrants are
exercisable within a period of two years.

In 2009, 10,000,000 warrants were exercised. In 2010,
as a result of the rights issue and the issue of the
Hony Convertible Notes mentioned in Note 25(ii), the
number of outstanding warrants has been increased to
321,320,000 with the subscription price being adjusted
to HK$0.20 per share. In 2010, a further 20,000,000
warrants were exercised. During the year ended 31
December 2011, the remaining 301,320,000 warrants
have been exercised.

27

tEeREERRARAT |

B A TOAR IR S B AR AR AR5 16k
HIRE - R R E SRS
HY A o (B I 8 2 L AR A (20
B) o RHBREAEITETISIER

AR REE
RZZFEZNFNA+LH KXRRIE
HMH00MB L ZERA —BRBILE
= 5 %17231,600,00017 RAXHESE o
MRREER T58 AR LR
BER29BTRE—BRARALR
B BERREE T A MERRITE-

B —ZZAF 10,000,000 R %
BBECETFE R —ZF W
&% K B 5E25(i) P it 2 32 7T Hony A #2
BEER MATERREZHE
& 1 2%321,320,00017 - M 2 B B
BEgR0208TTL- N _E—ZF >
20,000,00017 R A% 1 38 B — 2P 1T
FoRBEZT—F+=A=4—
HIEEE > 7301,320,0001) SR
BEEITE
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 28 MBERRRAZFABH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HEMBRAKRAZAEPHE
consolidated statement of financial position 2EIE:

are as follows:

The Group
rEEH
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
FET FAT
Balance of income tax payable R—A—BENFAERGR
at 1 January 65,231 39,689
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 8 =& 3,549 1,839
Addition through acquisition of BRRBHBERARZAE
subsidiaries (Note 30) (K1z£30) 2,103 -
Provision for income tax on the MAFE BT ERB AR Z
estimated taxable profits for the year FR{5Fi# 4 (HfzE7(a))
(Note 7(a)) 79,001 50,658
Withholding income tax on dividends 7<% @ ~ B [ B 2 7 52 f~+
paid by a PRC subsidiary of the Z IR ETEIAEH
Group (Note 7(a)) (K1ax7(a)) - 1,548
(Over-)/under-provision in respect of  BEFE (HBRERE) BiE
prior years (Note 7(a)) N (Kiat7(a)) (3,626) 853
Income tax paid during the year FAENFER (63,734) (29,356)
Balance of income tax payable R+ A=+—BEMNFFAE
at 31 December Tt 4 4 82,524 65,231

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(i) The Group

The components of deferred tax assets/

(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

(BRIEZ=BIEH

BRILGETZ3)

28 MBRRRANZAEH (4)

(b) ERRBEEHBEEEREE:
() *5£H

IRAR B B 55K 00 3% FE 77
ﬁkfﬁlﬁéﬁ?/(ﬁﬁ)Z
MO RFRZEBHWT:

Assets Liabilities
BE B
Fair value
Depreciation adjustments  Fair value
allowances Accrued on fixed assets  adjustments
inexcessof  expenses and intangible ~ on available-
the related and assets for-sale
Unused ~ depreciation deferred and related financial
Deferred tax arising from: tax loss expenses income Total  depreciation assets Total Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BegER
EVEEZ WHLELR
ABR FEBFEEY  ESEXR MERE EEZLAE
BTSIREEE 2 BERE: REEE BENEEX  EEUA Rt EEBRE L] At 8
Tt T Tt Tt T Titr Thn Tt
At 1 January 2010 RZF-%%
-A-H - 9422 282 12,244 (56,755) - (56,755) (44,511)
Exchange adjustments  E 3 53% 102 330 171 603 - - - 603
Additions through EARERELREZ
acquisitions of subsidiaries & 6,362 - 6,241 12,603 (40,507) - (40,507) (27,904)
Creditedi(charged) to the 3t A/ (1B )&
consolidated income W&Ex
statement (Vote 7a)  (K#703)) 3436 854 707 4,997 (387) - (387) 4610
At 31 December 2010 R-5-%F
T-AZt-H 9,900 10,606 9,941 30,447 (97,649) - (97,649) (67,202)
Exchange adjustments (B 5% 496 535 759 1,790 (1,547) - (1,547) 13
Additions through ERARENELA
acquisition of subsidiaries % (f#30)
(Note 30) - - 3,528 3,528 (42,433) (115) (42,548) (39,020)
Credited to the consolidated :t AFAMER
income statement (fii76)
(Note 7(a)) 197 386 7302 7,885 1,012 115 1127 9,012
Charged to reserves REETR
(Note 11(@) (W) - - - - (43,59) (24) (43,620) (43,620)
At 31 December 2011 p=Z--%
T-A=zt-H 10,593 11,527 21,530 43,650 (184,213) (24) (184,237) (140,587)
I I

tHRSEEEERERAT | T —FEH
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INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(ii) The Company

There were no significant deferred tax assets
and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of HK$617,022,000 (2010: HK$539,704,000), as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2011, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted to
HK$517,318,000 (2010: HK$261,036,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$25,866,000 (2010:
HK$13,052,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Annual Report 2011

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

28 MBRAKRAZAEB (4)

ERIAELEHAEERAE:

(%)

(i) &2 F]
RZFE——FRZF—F
FH-A=Z+—HUEE
KELHBEERAR-

ABERZEEBBEE

BIE M sE2(s)FT & 2 & 5
R AEBERRSBHEEIRE
617,022,000 . (=2 — =
£F 1 539,704,000 70) - RA A
EEBERB R AR REREET
KA BE & BT AR 2R B AR B 1) LA
ERAEE-

AERZELEBEAE
R—E—F+=A=+—8"
HAEEETHRWBLARZ
Aol aNMEBEBCERERR
517,318,000 Lt (& — &
1 261,036,000/ 70 ) © IR ITFi
18 & 525,866,000 7T ( — & —
T4 113,052,000 7T ) (4 K &t
BIEZERE &N 2D IRER 2
I 7 AR KRR AR A
THIZE P BB AR ZRERK
REBETE T KA LR A8
RAERFUADIR -

29 BXR - -fHERERE

REBGED

A B A2 5315 2 1)
TR A 2 SR YRR A
FEBE-
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX-RERKRE (&)
(continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REIGE2E (&)
(continued)
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FUEFRAR AR Z S EREES
components of equity between the beginning and MZEBFBEHIMAT -

the end of the year are set out below:

The Company ¥ AT
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c))  (Note 29(d)(i))  (Note 29(d)(ii))
AT REE EXfE 2 BER At

TET TET TET TET TET
(H1&£29(c)) (Kizz29(d)i)) (HKiaz29(d)ii))

Balance at 1 January R=E—F&
2010 —A—-RAzisH 116,824 385,035 130,400 (264,953) 367,306

Changes in equity for —E—ZE#F
2010: 2E:
Total comprehensive  F A2 @5

income for the year - - - (93,192) (93,192)
Shares issued on the  17{F A% F B

exercise of warrants TR

(Note 29(c)(ii)) (Bt aE29(c)i)) 2,000 2,152 (152) - 4,000
Share issued under  1RIEERR BT %

share option scheme ~ {TH% 13 200 733 (303) - 630
Equity-settled share- IR AL E AR

based transactions IRZR5

(Note 26) (Hii£26) - - 6,750 - 6,750
Share issued on rights {1t % B5 247 i% (7

issue 58,412 - (1,057) 1,057 58,412
Effect on equity arising [FJEYE ZEE A4

from the offsetting of IR 2 L4 R H

loan receivable with 18 5F 45 M A

convertible notes, the IR Z 1% 1 41 A%

extinguishmentand ~ BEE£ZFE

recognition of the

convertible notes - - (37,183) - (37,183)
Transfer between [ AR

reserves - - (4,733) 4,733 -
Balance at 31 R-ZE-ZF

December 2010 +=BA=+-H

iR 177,436 387,920 93,722 (352,355) 306,723
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ IER B & B E T ZE5)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX REERRKRE (£)
(continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REIRG2E (&)
(continued)
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c) ~ (Note 29(d)(i))  (Note 29(d)(ii))
R R4 EE EXfke 25t EE @t
TET TET TER TEX TET

(Btzt29(c)) (Ba29(d)0)) (FE29(d)ii))

Balance at 1 January R=F——&
2011 —B-Bz&& 177,436 387,920 93,722 (352,355) 306,723

Changes in equity for ZE——F &

2011: #5:
Total comprehensive ~ FERNZ2E W EEE
income for the year - - - (16,183) (16,183)

Shares issued on the  {T{F A RAE Z B3

exercise of warrants TR (7

(Note 29(c)(ii) (Kta£29(c)i)) 30,132 32,310 (2,181) - 60,261
Equity-settled share-  RIRALEE AR

based transactions ¥t Z% 5

(Note 26) (Hi326) - - 11,065 - 11,065
Shares issued on BRARRERR

the conversion of BTG

convertible notes (Hizt25(v))

(Note 25(iv)) 179,243 473,525 (85,958) - 566,810

Effect on equity arising BB EEREZER
from the redemption ¥ EEL 7 &
of the unsecured 2 (fs24)

notes (Note 24) - - (11,372) - (11,372)
Effect on equity HERER TR
arising from the FEMmMEREE

extinguishmentand 42 %2 (3
recognition of the 25(ii))
convertible notes

(Note 25(ii) - - 70,018 - 70,018
Balance at 31 RZE——§
December 2011 +=B=+-H
k3 386,811 893,755 75,294 (368,538) 987,322

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX -RERRE (8)
(continued)
(b) Dividends (b) RE
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) FRAAIRREGEEFEE
shareholders of the Company 11 1R 2
attributable to the year
The directors of the Company do not RAAREZFW TEZHEIKN
recommend the payment of a final dividend BHEzE-_FT——F+=-A
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: =+—HIEFEZRH
HK$Nil). BRE(ZZE-—ZTF :TF
TT) e
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) FARIRRELFASH
shareholders of the Company ERTfZ E— BB F
attributable to the previous financial EEAKRE
year, approved and paid during the year
The directors of the Company did not AAREZFW TIEZHEIKRN
recommend the payment of a final dividend BHE-_ZFT-ZTF+=-A
for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: =+ IEFE Z 3T< HA
HK$Nil). BRE(ZZETNF TE
JT) e
(c) Share capital (0 BRAE
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZERERTRA
2011 2010
—EB——F —ET-FF
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
R4 8B RHEE
TR THER F & FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of &% E{E0.108 T2
HK$0.10 each LAk 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
Ordinary shares, ERETRHZ
issued and fully EEK:
paid:
At 1 January H—B—H 1,774,361  177.436 1,168,241 116,824
Shares issued on 7718 R % #E B
the exercise of BATRD
warrants (Bt aE29(c)ii))
(Note 29(c)(ii) 301,320 30,132 20,000 2,000
Shares issued on ¥ ¥ A] A A% Z AR A
the conversion of  ZE1TR% D
convertible notes  (Hf3E25(iv))
(Note 25(iv)) 1,792,424 179,243 - -
Shares issued under 1R % B B #E 51 21
share option BT
scheme - - 2,000 200
Shares issued on SN B EE 1T AR 1D
rights issue - - 584,120 58,412
At 31 December NRt+-—_A=+—H 3,868,105 386,811 1,774,361 177,436

S i
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Authorised and issued share capital
(continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued on the exercise of
warrants

In 2010, an aggregate of 20,000,000 warrants
were exercised, and accordingly, 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
at HK$0.20 per share. Of the proceeds of
HK$4,000,000, HK$2,000,000 representing
the par value, were credited to share capital,
and the remaining proceeds of HK$2,000,000
were credited to the share premium account.
HK$152,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(n).

In 2011, an aggregate of 301,320,000
warrants were exercised, and accordingly,
301,320,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued at HK$0.20 per share. Of the
proceeds of HK$60,264,000, HK$30,132,000
representing the par value, were credited to
share capital, and the remaining proceeds,
net of transaction costs, of HK$30,129,000
were credited to the share premium account.
HK$2,181,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(n).
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX -RERRE (8)
(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued) (0 BE(E)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised (iii) R & B 2K ief 7} EV B R fef
share options and warrants at the end RITEIERERZBIREE
of the reporting period ZIFS

2011 2010
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
‘000 ‘000
—B2-—-F _—T-TF
175 TEE 4= Egs
) F1n
Share options:
BB AE:
20 October 2010 to 19 October 2015 HK$0.315 42,000 42,000
“E-ZEF+A-THE 0.315% 7T
—RE+ATNA
20 October 2011 to 19 October 2017 HK$0.49 176,100 -
_T**E‘i—ﬂ +B=E 0.49% 7T
—tF+HA+NA
218,100 42,000
Warrants:
RRERE
17 August 2009 to 16 August 2011 HK$0.20 - 301,320
—ZEEAFENATERE 0.20/# 7T
—E2——FNA+~H
Each option or warrant entitles the holder 5 1 W A 1 S R AR 1 o AR
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the TRHREARBARAZ—
Company. Further details of these options REBR ZEHEBRER
and warrants are set out in Notes 26 and 27, RBREB2E—TFED
respectively, to these financial statements. Rl 8 AR 5% 5 B 75 i 3% B A
26527 °

HELHELERERAT | —B——FFH



otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Capital reserve

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, capital
reserve comprises the following, where
applicable:

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted
to directors, employees and service
providers of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii);

the amount allocated to the unexercised
equity component of convertible notes
issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for convertible notes in Note

2(m)(i);

the portion of the issue date fair value
of the unexercised warrants issued by
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for warrants in Note 2(n); and

the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Notes 2(f) and 2(j)(i).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for leasehold land
and buildings held for own use in Note 2(g).

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the
PRC subsidiaries were required to set up
certain statutory reserves, which were non-
distributable. The transfers of these reserves
are at discretion of the directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. The statutory reserves can only
be utilised for predetermined means upon
approval by the relevant authority.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations which have a functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars into Hong Kong
dollars. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(v).
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(e) Distributable reserves

(f)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HKS$Nil (2010:
HK$Nil). The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes bank and other loans,
unsecured notes and convertible notes) less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy was to continue
to lower the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group’s
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX -RERRE (#)
(continued)
(f) Capital management (continued) (f) EXEE(E)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 RZB——FR=F—TFF=
December 2011 and 2010 is as follows: A=+—HB &HRABFEEHE
AREERGN
The Group The Company
AEH ¥IN/N |
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —Z=T-ZF ZB-—— —ZT—IZF
FExT FETT TET FATT
Current liabilities: mEaE:
Bank and other loans #8717 &%
Hh B 5% 106,300 149,371 - -
Unsecured notes | IR E 71,658 - 71,658 -
Non-current liabilities: JERBIB(E :
Bank and other loans 87
HMER 448,993 216,821 - -
Unsecured notes K E R - 98,661 - 98,661
Convertible notes AR R & 1,123,370 1,275,102 1,123,370 1,275,102
Total debt wEE 1,750,321 1,739,955 1,195,028 1,373,763
Less: cash and cash B IRENIRE
equivalents £EIER (236,012) (115,101) (442) (2,954)

Adjusted net debt KB FEE 1,514,309 1,624,854 1,194,586 1,370,809

Total equity and Bm RS HEE
adjusted capital K4aEa 1,458,246 405,469 987,322 306,723

Adjusted net debt-to- EFHR FFEEY

capital ratio =@ N A= 104% 401% 121% 447 %
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RAE R EAA B AR Z

subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SNRIEINZ BEARIRERRR
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 January 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with Grand Well to acquire 100% equity
interests in ldeal Mix and its subsidiaries (the “Ideal Mix
Group”), a group which owned two department stores
and five supermarkets in the PRC, for a consideration
of HK$389.5 million. Of the consideration, HK$254.0
million is to be satisfied in cash and the remaining
HK$135.5 million is to be satisfied through the issuance
of the Grand Well Convertible Notes (see Note 25(iii)).
The above acquisition was completed on 24 May 2011.

The directors of the Company considered that the
acquisition was in line with the Group’s long-term
strategic goals for its department store business in the
PRC. The acquisition represented a good opportunity
for the Group to expand its current department store
operations in the PRC. The directors also considered that
further expansion of the Group’s sales network would
enhance the Group’s ability to achieve economies of
scale, increase its market share and diversify its customer
base through further differentiation of products and the
added locations of its department stores. The acquisition
could further enhance the geographical coverage of
the Group and to reduce the number of competitors in
the northwestern region of the PRC. It would further
consolidate the Group’s market position in that region
and strengthen the Group’s brand awareness and image.
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30 WIRKTE AR (#)
M B R AT 2 T B R A

30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in

the above acquisition were as follows: EEZEBERT:

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERRAZ

Y B8 AT BR T B ARERE WEEEE

FET FAET FAT

Fixed assets (Note 13) BEE&E (Ma13) 121,670 2,457 124,127
Intangible assets (Note 14) mREE (Kit14) - 89,310 89,310
Deferred tax assets (Note 28(b)) iEIEFiTE E &=

(BfaF28(b)) 3,528 - 3,528
Inventories FE 25,636 - 25,636
Available-for-sale financial assets o] 4t H & 4 gt & & 93,741 - 93,741
Trade and other receivables & Ui B 3 K L A LSRR 29,719 - 29,719
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMBEIEE 35,313 - 35,313
Trade and other payables & {<F BR SR K2 EL th & 5 K (192,886) (40,820) (233,706)
Current taxation (Note 28(a))  BNEAFEIE (Hf7£28(a)) (2,103) - (2,103)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

(Note 28(b)) (Hi&£28(b)) (19,606) (22,942) (42,548)

Net identifiable assets acquired it > 7] 3% 5l

BEFRE 95,012 28,005 123,017
Goodwill (Note 15) & (Mfat15) 266,466
Total consideration BB 389,483

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts of the acquiree’s assets
and liabilities were determined based on applicable
HKFRSs immediately before the acquisition. The values of
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised on
acquisition are their estimated fair values. In determining
the fair values of fixed assets and intangible assets,
the directors of the Company have referenced the fair
value adjustments to valuation reports issued by an
independent valuer. The valuation methods adopted were
cost approach, market approach and income approach,
where applicable.

ERBEEEN RRBTZEER
BEZEBIREENREERS
B EERIEE - MU B R HERR
ZEE -BERIRABZEESR
HAFtarnB -RETETEERE
WEEZAARER RARERE2
ZHBUAEMERL 2EERETZA
AREFE B2 BETER/KA
EWIHERWAE (WER) -
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Pursuant to the above equity transfer agreement, the
Group is liable to pay additional consideration to Grand
Well with reference to the pre-acquisition retained profits
of the Ideal Mix Group upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions by the equity shareholder of Grand Well. The
directors of the Company was in the midst of estimating
the fair value of such contingent consideration on the
acquisition date and as of 30 June 2011 and therefore
the contingent consideration was provisionally recorded
at HK$Nil in the Company’s interim report for the six-
month period ended 30 June 2011. The directors of
the Company subsequently determined the fair value of
the above-mentioned contingent consideration at the
acquisition date to be RMB33.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$40.8 million) and made an adjustment
to retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts
previously recognised. Accordingly, the net identifiable
assets decreased from HK$163.8 million, as recorded on
the acquisition date, to HK$123.0 million, whereas the
amount of goodwill increased from HK$225.7 million, as
recorded on the acquisition date, to HK$266.5 million.

From the date of the above acquisition to 31 December
2011, the Ideal Mix Group contributed net profit of
HK$13.6 million to the Group in 2011. Had the above
acquisition been occurred on 1 January 2011, the
directors of the Company estimate that the consolidated
turnover and consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2011 would have been HK$1,452.5 million
and HK$275.7 million, respectively.

ACQUISITIONS OF NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 30 December 2010, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into various
share transfer agreements to acquire the remaining
49% equity interests in Ginwa Tangrenjie from the then
non-controlling equity holders of Ginwa Tangrenjie at
a total consideration of RMB47.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$56.9 million).

Upon completion of the above acquisitions on 16
May 2011, Ginwa Tangrenjie became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Consequently, the Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$5.8 million.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, and trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Loan receivables mainly represented a loan due from
an affiliate of an equity shareholder of the Company.
The Group has obtained collateral from this equity
shareholder, and accordingly, the management of the
Group expects such balance is with minimal credit risk.

Investments are in liquid equity and debt securities
issued by financial institutions in the PRC. Given the
high credit standing of these financial institutions,
the management of the Group does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the debtor as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtor operates. Trade receivables are generally due
within 3 months from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from debtors.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor rather
than the industry or country in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the end
of the reporting period, 45% (2010: 37%) and 86%
(2010: 76%) of the total trade receivable was due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest
debtors, respectively. Trade receivables are mainly
due from credit card centres owned by state-owned
financial institutions in the PRC, and accordingly, the
management of the Group views the concentration and
credit risks to be low.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

"~ Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Group as set out
in Note 34, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 34.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, and
trade and other receivables are set out in Notes 17,
19 and 20, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surplus and raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined level of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$826.6 million. The Group will
continue to undertake various measures in order to
further improve its liquidity position in the short and
longer term.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIEEBREERAAE (&)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and of the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the

RBEERRE (&)

TREAXREERARRRZIFT
TERABERITESREBENR
SHMRZHBTAEOIMBER B
AIERIREANOARITRRER
E(BREBAONERTE %K
WEF B R - RIRIE R S
RZMREAEZFBAF) A K
AR J AN A Al B B SRR K

(b)

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group ZEFHEBEL:
and the Company can be required to pay:
The Group rEEH
2011
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
o
BORFRRERH
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1 1 year but 2 years amount at
yearoron less than but less than  More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i
8%
t=h
-Fag  —-FUE  WEHNE =t-H
REX®R EBIRWE EBIREE  EFUL @ ZREE
THR THR THR THR THR THR
Trade and other payables  ERBRZN R E fth
R 1,087,054 - - - 1,087,054 1,087,054
Bank and other loans ROREMER 197,615 67,252 280,841 314,706 860,414 555,293
Unsecured notes EARZR 84,402 - - - 84,402 71,658
Convertible notes RRER 17,120 176,589 1,121,418 - 1315121 1,123,370
1,386,191 243,841 1,402,259 314,706 3,346,997 2,837,375
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIXEREERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEARK (&)
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—2-%%
ANAFRRE MM
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1 1 year but 2 years amount at
year or on less than  but less than ~ More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
2
%%
TZA
—ERg%  —ENE BRENL =t-A
REXE BIRRE BIRRE LENUE g EEE
THET THET THET THET THET THET
Trade and other payables TR R EM
R 622,281 - - - 622281 622,281
Bank and other loans ROIREBER 171,368 35,859 98,642 162,457 468,326 366,192
Unsecured notes ERBZEE - 138,702 - - 138,702 98,661
Convertible notes THRRER 26,610 26,610 1,511,038 - 1,564258 1,275,102

820,259 201,171 1,609,680 162,457 2,793,567 2,362,236
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIXEREERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELEAR (&)
The Company VAT
201
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
e
SRARRRER

More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 1 year but but less amount at
yearoron less than than  More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2011
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R
“E--F
=y
-FRE -FUE RENL =t-H

REXE BIRME EIREF EENUL axt zEREE
TR TR TEn TR TEn TEn

Other payables EERT 44,422 - - - 44,422 44,422
Unsecured notes BIEAZR 84,402 - - - 84,402 71,658

Convertible notes AHRRER 17,120 176,589 1,121,418 1,315,127 1,123,370

145,944 176,589 1,121,418 1,443,951 1,239,450

2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—2-%f%
ANARRRER

More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 1 year but but less amount at
year or on less than than  More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2010
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
S
It S 22
tZA
X% —F0E  WENE =t-H

REXE BIRME EIRDF  DFNE it ZREE
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Other payables A ERT 462,084 - - - 462,084 462,084
Unsecured notes BEAZE - 138,702 - - 138,702 98,661
Convertible notes HRER 26,610 26610 1,511,038 - 1,564258 1,275,102

488,694 165,312 1,511,038

2,165,044 1,835,847

tEeREEERARAT |
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate

LRILETZ23)

32 MHKEBREERAARE (B)

() FI=Eg
REBZMNERBEERER
fE & o ¥ P 8 P K I 3% [ E A &
BIIZEERREREDRIEXR
i/}lu%ﬂrﬂ Z\\ftfﬁﬂ
LB o

(i) FIEER
TRANANEE R AR

profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s Ep = 1ji@“b’/\¥|§iﬂﬂ3ﬁ2ﬂ
interest bearing borrowings at the end of the EHER
reporting period.
The Group
REH
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERRF= ERRF =
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET FAT
Fixed rate & 7F F) &
borrowings: BE:
Bank and other |ITRE
loans fth & 3K - - 7.52% 27,174
Convertible notes Al AR
E37 19.61% 89,773 21.50% 981,827
89,773 1,009,001
Variable rate CIE-EEs
borrowings: ﬁaﬂg
Bank and other MITRE 6.89%- 5.74%-
loans ftb B 3K 15.80% 555,293 8.72% 339,018
Total borrowings BEHERE 645,066 1,348,019
Fixed rate borrowings [& & #) & (& &
as a percentage of 1£1ﬁgﬁ' #
total borrowings ZAD 14% 75%

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

32 BEAREERAQ

() F=EE (&)
(i) FIEHR (&)
The Company

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

PN
2011 2010
—E——F —ZF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BEERA= B Fx
% HKS$'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed rate & F F &
borrowings: BE:
Convertible notes Al A R%
E 373 19.61% 89,773 21.50% 981,827
Total borrowings R 89,773 981,827
Fixed rate borrowings [& 5 F| & £ &
as a percentage of (HfEE4a%8
total borrowings ZBEDL 100% 100%
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEMEDH
At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a N—F— —F +

— A
=+ —H #HEELE

general increase/decrease of 100 basis points

in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and increased/
decreased the Group’s accumulated losses by
approximately HK$4.2 million (2010: HK$2.5
million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit after tax and accumulated
losses is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2010.

tEeREEERARAT |

F#ATHI00EES £
FrE E A m] B ) A = RHF

TEZBERT AEEK
Fiig BF &L, 180k
REBMRAFEIEBEMN,
el 4 494,200,000/ 7T ( =
T —ZF 4 :2,500,000/%
JT) e

bl R 3 AT IR R R R
&R AR R AR [ P s
BREIFHNERGFRZIF
TESMIAMEEZR
ERENEE R HAE
B B A 120 A & Rt B 1R
TENRERNEE
ﬁﬂ§ﬁ§2$k%%
&t e ﬁ&ﬁ_? z
EHHZ% #IT

S i
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to currency risk as no
transactions are conducted in a foreign currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate.

(e) Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair
value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

J Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data.

e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data.

The Group's and the Company’s financial
instruments carried at fair value at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are all measured
under Level 2.

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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WIz@ TA: KEIFRR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BiI#EREERARLE (£)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e) RAE(E)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair () BAREIRZEMT A
value (continued) (&)
The Group and the Company
AEERARQTA
Level 2
F2R
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FET FAET
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments: $T4& &gt T A :
- Option to acquire additional ~ —REEZAINATRGZIE 2
convertible notes (Note 22) HiME (Mfat22) - (1,808)
— Call option under the BMRL ~ —BMRLE{EIE T~ 7 2 88 Hf
Notes (Note 25(i)) #E (Kfa£253)) 12,842 120,557
— Conversion and redemption —Hony A 2% =& & Hony
options under the Hony RBRERIZE]R KL
Convertible Notes and the B[O HA
Hony Convertible Notes Il (K aE25(i) )
(Note 25(ii))) (418,319) (559,862)
— Call and conversion options —Grand Well A 2 i Z &
under the Grand Well 2R R iR R
Convertible Notes #E (Bt &£25(iii))
(Note 25(iii))) (24,875) -
(430,352) (441,113)
(i) Fair values of financial instruments (i) XFBAREBIIRZEH
carried at other than fair value TEWARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and of R_E——FR_FT-F
the Company’s financial instruments carried F+_A=+—H K%
at cost or amortised cost are not materially EIPNEN/NCIN N £ 2
different from their fair values as at 31 ARz M T A
December 2011 and 2010 except as follows: HEEEQAAETEEX
ZRl HETHE BRI
The Group rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —_ZET-FF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREE DA RE BREE NiE
FE T FET FET FAET
Loan receivables JFE U E 3K 805,458 696,045 681,174 662,606
Long-term bank and RHI$R1T R H
other loans HmER 448,993 427,830 216,821 204,069
Unsecured notes EIERRER 71,658 71,774 98,661 104,271
Convertible notes — FAJ AR Z= 4% — ‘
liability components & & &85 693,018 649,513 835,797 798,937

tHRSEEEERERAT |
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

32 BERBEERQAME(E)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e) AAME(E)

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments (i) XHZELAALBIERZEH
carried at other than fair value TAHRXAHE (&)
(continued)

The Company NN
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REE ARE FREE NRE
FET FET FET FHET
Unsecured notes EI I EIE 71,658 71,774 98,661 104,271
Convertible notes —  A[#A X Z 4 —
liability components & &35 693,018 649,513 835,797 798,937

(f) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i) Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives are determined
based on valuation models at the end of the
reporting period. Details of the assumptions
adopted are disclosed in Note 25.

Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f) Estimation of fair values (continued)

(ii) Loan receivables, long-term bank and
other loans, unsecured notes and
convertible notes - liability components

The fair value is estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at current
market interest rates for similar financial
instruments.

The Group uses the interest rate published by
the People’s Bank of China as of 31 December
2011 and 2010 plus an adequate constant
credit spread to discount loan receivables and
long-term bank and other loans. The Group
uses the risk free interest rate reference to the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as of 31
December 2011 and 2010 plus credit spread
of comparable notes with similar credit rating,
coupons and maturities to discount the liability
components of the convertible notes and
unsecured notes. The interest rates used are as
follows:

Loan receivables A= EN

Long-term bank and other loans &HI$R1T K E

Unsecured notes IR R
Convertible notes AT E
— liability components —B & H

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

32 BERBEERQAME(E)

()

s Eh
H A

DREM/E (E)

(ii)

EREY - RIRITRE
R s W ARBERT
BBk - AEBH
DREDERFRL R E
BRESHIAY B0
LETEY $2 18-
o

AEBHEBFBRARIETT
RZBE——FR_F—F
F+-—A=+—8B2aMHmz
FEMEHEETEEEE
IR EWE R R R EIRTT
MEMER - AEBKA
BERNERESCEBEN T
——ERkRZE-TF+=
A=+—HZERRF =X
MEBEUEEFTR B
EREEBHAZAEERE
BZEEEEZARAIBR
ZEzaE D RERA
FiRMEAZFEDT

2011 2010
=B-—-F —Z-ZF
21.57% 13.85%
9.17% 7.04%
19.127% 15.968%
10.60%- 8.539%-
20.45% 23.397%
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 AiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREE
At 31 December 2011, the outstanding capital R_E——F+_A=+—8"
commitments of the Group not provided for in the RNEBRELSGE M HETEE
consolidated financial statements were as follows: ZARNEREENT :
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B——-F —ET-FF
FET FHET
Commitments in respect of purchase BB [&F & &E 2 &Ik
of fixed assets
— Contracted for —B&I % 6,850 15,645
Commitments in respect of WEH B AR ZEE
investments in subsidiaries
— Contracted for (Note 36) — B 514 (KaE36) 655,150 -
662,000 15,645
At 31 December 2011, capital commitments in R_B——F+_A=+—8"
respect of purchase of fixed assets are for leasehold EHBERTERECERFETD
improvements to be installed in the Group's HERAEE 2 BERRAERL
department store operations. RoHEREER-

Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

33 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FN
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERERAFA
After 5 years hF&

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations
under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 1 to 20 years, where all terms
are renegotiated upon renewal. One of the leases
includes contingent rentals which are calculated
based on a fixed percentage on the department
store’s turnover.

Properties leased out under operating leases

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA
After 5 years hFi&

The Group leases out part of its department stores
and office premises under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
10 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants’ turnover.

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZES)

33 EE(#H)
(b)

(c)

tEeREEERARAT |

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8"
RIBAIHEE 2 2 MEE AR
et 2 SIRHE N RARELT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FET FAT
137,192 69,017
380,669 237,625
789,300 743,336
1,307,161 1,049,978

AEBRBELEHEHREETY
EHEABERARBRATISER
FEH - ZFEHE—RONTRH—
E_+F MABGRRRERR
PR BEHHE - BT —HEAER
RIRBEAERARERBEZETER
DEFEZHREE

RECEREHEZ N
W-F——F+-A=+—8
AR EIR T AN 2 SR
7 A el S E R E TR
M -

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-—-F —ZT-ZF
FEx TET
23,965 15,603
51,389 56,362
29,612 26,881
104,966 98,846

AEBRBLEHEEHAER
Az BYELERAE - ZF
HE-RNFBH—E+F M
BB AT RN B B A E -
ETHERBERFEHEFPEXEL
BEADLFAEZHAREE -
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Legal claim

Ginwa Bell Tower, a subsidiary of the Group, has
provided a guarantee on bank loan of RMB24.0
million drawn by a third party in 2005. This third
party has subsequently defaulted repayment on
the bank loan and has yet to repay the bank loan
as of the date of these financial statements. In
October 2006 and December 2009, Ginwa Bell
Tower received court judgements which found
that both the third party and Ginwa Bell Tower to
be jointly and severally liable for the repayment
of the defaulted bank loan plus interest accrued
thereof. The court judgements have required Ginwa
Bell Tower to fulfil its obligation as the guarantor.
Under an agreement entered into between Ginwa
Bell Tower and Ginwa Investment in 2008, Ginwa
Investment has agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell
Tower on any losses incurred arising from the
above guarantee. As of 31 December 2011, the
defaulted bank loan plus accrued interest amounted
to RMB17.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$21.2 million). The directors of the Company
believe the indemnity agreement entered into with
Ginwa Investment will enable the Group to recover
any losses the Group may have incurred arising from
the above guarantee. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in respect of this claim.

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, and in
addition to the guarantee mentioned in Note 34(a),
the Group has issued the following guarantees:

(i) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan of
RMB90.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$111.0 million) drawn by Ginwa Investment
in 2008. The loan will mature in July 2012. In
September 2010, Ginwa Bell Tower and Ginwa
Investment have entered into an agreement,
where Ginwa Investment has agreed to
indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on any losses
incurred arising from the above guarantee.

Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSHIEEE - & AILE T Z5)

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan of
RMB13.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$16.3 million) drawn by Ginwa Investment
in 2007. The loan will mature in September
2013. In August 2008, Ginwa Bell Tower
and Ginwa Investment have entered into an
agreement, where Ginwa Investment has
agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on
any losses incurred arising from the above
guarantee.

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower
in respect of a loan of RMB13.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$16.3 million)
granted by a third party to Ginwa Investment
in August 2005. Ginwa Investment has
defaulted repayment on the loan but has
subsequently agreed with this third party
on a revised repayment schedule. As of 31
December 2011, the outstanding loan balance
is RMB9.5 million (equivalunt to approximately
HK$11.7 million).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it probable that
a claim will be made against the Group under any
of the above guarantees. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantees issued is the outstanding amount
of the bank and other loans of RMB112.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$139.0 million) plus
accrued interest.

34 HARAME (&)
(b) BHZHBER (H)

(ii)

(iii)

CHEERSHEREN
TR FIRM T EERTT
B AR %13,200,0007T
(& R #16,300,000/8
L) MR 2 ER - ZEE
RER—_E—=FHLAE
H-RNZZTTEN\FNR &
TEERESEREERL
e Bt EREER
EReEEEBRER L
EREEZEMEBLX-

—REZFREBEEZEE
“HR-_ZEERFENAR
FEEREZERARK
13,200,0007T (& R4
16,300,000 7T ) M B &
TCEERECERAS
TEEB S EREHRE
BZEEH - BEHEE S
FZHEKR—HEEBIZ
BREE -HE2E_T——
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RBERR ARREEREE
PFARAT e S AR F (] LB R M
HAEBERHZRE -AEENIF
EHRZEBLERETZ&
SRBEAMAKEEZRITEN
A R #112,700,0007T (#8% R
#9139,000,000/% 7t ) 1 & 51 F

B o
Ao




158

Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) ([ 3E 5 B 158

35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders of the

LRILETZ23)

35 EAEEALTRS
B B R A 1D TR EE 2 4
51 - A S I 17 LA T B A B
x5

(a) BAQXFARRREEHBAL

Company and their affiliates: EITZXE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F —T-FTF
TER FHET
Interest expenses (Note i) FMERS (KaEi) 13,370 27,655
Interest income (Note ii) FEMA (Hrazii) 25,810 51,961
Management service fee income ERRBERA 8,684 7,740
Operating lease expenses KEHERY 21,190 -
Purchase of leasehold land and BERETwMNEF 1K
buildings, net of related bank loan HEERITE K - 508,517
Net advances received (Note iii) BB FUFEE (B aLiii) 41,278 4,015
Guarantees provided by and/or RBERRBEALTRAE
secured by properties of related B 2RIT R EMEREE
parties for the Group’s bank and KA EAE S 2 AR
other loans at the end of the (R Ht7E23)
reporting period (see Note 23) 77,986 128,218

Further details on the acquisition of subsidiaries
from a related party and guarantees the Group
provided for a related party are set out in Notes 30
and 34, respectively.

Notes:

(i) Interest expenses for the year ended 31 December
2011 represented interest charges arose from the
Hony Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible
Notes Il, where interest expenses for the year ended
31 December 2010 represented interest charges
arose from the BMRL Notes.

(i) Interest income represented interest charges on the
loan receivable from Ginwa Investment.
(iii)  Advances received from related parties are

unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

BRI —REEATWEHBAR
AR AN E S RE AN T REER
2 — B DRI M EE30
K34 °

Fff &t -

)y #®HE_FT——FF+-_A=1+—
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Hony Al 2 I8 2= 35 K& Hony A] #&
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—E-TFF+A=+—H1E
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35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

35 EXBEANEIRE (8)

(b) FEEEBAEFHMH

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind

Retirement scheme contributions RIKEHEIE X

Share-based payments AR A7 15 5%

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

36 NON-ADJUSTING SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(@) Acquisition of entire equity interests in

Qianhui

On 16 May 2011, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a share transfer
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests
in Qianhui, which as a condition precedent to this
acquisition, Qianhui is to acquire the properties that
one of the Group’s department stores is currently
situated. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group will
acquire the entire equity interests of Qianhui at a
total consideration of RMB500.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$616.8 million).

Upon completion of the above acquisition on 16
January 2012, Qianhui became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

FE RUMEEDEN

FEEEBEABZHM (BIEMH T
SIWEEN TARREEZR
HEWEFTHEE N FE T &
SHMEE ZFKB)MT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-—-5 Z—T-ZF
TR THET
17,328 11,931
202 185

3,719 2,330
21,249 14,446

FMeBEs ATEIRA] A
( RFf5E6(D)) ©

36 MEAHRZIFEARER
(a) WEBTEZzZ2HKRE

R-TE——FRA+B ARQ
AEB—HE2EWNBRAG L
RS 17 82 53 177 s A UK BB T [E (T [E
BeWBEALEEEF—HEHE
RNEREE 2 Y% ZAILIE
BB Ry SR ) 2 2 B R -
BiEHZE  AEEHARREA
R #500,000,0007T (B & R4
616,800,000/% 7T ) W B T IE 2

EEBAAE -

KB EER =T~ =% — A
+RBRRE  TERAREE
Z2BHBAR -

HESTHEHEZRABRLA —B——FFR
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37

38

NON-ADJUSTING SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(continued)

(b) Acquisition of entire equity interests in CPI
Asia Big Bell 2 Limited (“Big Bell 2")

On 9 June 2011, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a share transfer
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests
in Big Bell 2, which owns the properties that one
of the Group’s department stores is currently
situated. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group will
acquire the entire equity interests of Big Bell 2 at a
consideration of RMB350.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$432.8 million) plus an interest
charge of 9% per annum on the consideration to
be accrued from 10 June 2011 to the acquisition
completion date. Up to the date of issue of these
financial statements, the above acquisition has yet
to be completed.

The directors of the Company have confirmed
that the Group has commenced considering the
potential financial impact of the above acquisition
but is not yet in a position to determine the
potential financial impact of the above acquisition
on the Group’s results of operations in future
periods and financial position at future dates.

IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate holding company of the Group to
be Best Mineral Resources Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to the current year's presentation.

, ~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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(b) UEECPI Asia Big Bell 2
Limited ([Big Bell 2]) 2 &
o0 AR e

R—ZZE——F X XALB &AQ
TLL Bl = MNEIH VA
RS 17 2 % 175 % LA UR BB Big Bell 2
(EBEArEBHEF—HBEE
RAREEZYE)ZEF
feE - RIEHZE  AS BB KE
Big Bell 2z 2Bk #E - RE B A
R #350,900,0007C (HH & R4
432,800,000 7T) - B F 9%~
REFESBHE-_ZT——%F XA
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W B = TH M AR TERK ©
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BN BEMEZE

HEEZRAT
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 15, 25, 26 and 32 contain information about the
assumptions and the risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment, fair value of financial instruments and
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

(b) Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(j)(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and
the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
the recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying value of
the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods,
where applicable.

39 =T HER AR

MisE15 25 26 32 AR T A
MR EREZ A ABREERE
ERAZBERERREAZZER &
AT EZEMEERRMT

(a) EWFIRREE
EEEEREBARENATE
FIREL Z (At B IR AT R R AR
1o B ERIRE R AR Z
fRilk ~ B AEE ROBE MR
BAEL AR - B EBA I
ARRBAE BEMBE R SRME
WSS e

(b) MAEERME
fid & 15 L BUR R W B i A &
EZREE EHEEFERR
[RAE ] - 30 AT e AR 4% B &2 2()(i)
Frat AR A EERE 85
TR HE R OR (B 5 18 © AN 5% B HA
ERMABE CRETHE BN
AHEAREEBEES THRER
REEE 25 - IR ERER
DI U U B R ETE 24
oA NEMBEARAEMBEE
RASEREBERERZES
E-HEEEEMAEER B E
EEENAKREREMRER
1B B AHHEBARAKERE
ERASRIELERHE K&K
ExEETRALKRSEEEZE
BYER  ERRFNEZIRS
BE BREERAERAXRED
Z IR Z A ET A B A B = X
KB 2 FRRIKF - BRAfEET 2
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FE W RN ARSI ZEIN
B R S sk (F R E B R (2niE
) e

tEeREERRARAT |
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

(c) Depreciation
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual values.
The management reviews the estimated useful
lives and the residual values of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The determination of the useful lives and the
residual values are based on historical experience
with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

39 EFHETR MG (&)

40

()

EEAEMRREBEE=

e

BB E 2 P8I E Bt
MREER  REE G AIER
FRABREAE -EEEEY
BEREE AP ERERLF
BEE  UBEMEFHREHA
FRCHRZTEX TR - AIERF
REFSKEBDRERUEEZ
BIELRRE - HBEZ AR
REREE ARERHE2ITE
SXHIEHE-

T——

E+-A=t+t-HUEFEX

Mz FaT A

R Z BT R

REZEERE

BEFE
SAEE

fREFMBHRERAMY BES
BHEATHARBE—F

—— &+ -_A=T-BULFELERE
el R 7% 3 B 75 SR SR WO T 5T 2

Al

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for

first-time adopters

R Z BT R ig

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTH BN &R
S HEER

1 July 2011

BV HHREENE R (BRIRN) [BERXERABBHHHEER 5L 85 XK

MEB T BN HEREERNETFILEBEREZBRBE ]

financial assets

underlying assets

BB GHERNE 129 (BRI A1

Annual Report 2011

BEEMBERELENETR (BEIX) (2T A KE-HEEHEE]
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of

— BRI R A E 2 D ] —F—

—E——%+H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of

1 July 2011
—E——%+tA—H

1 January 2012
—#—H—H
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 40 CHEAEENARREBEZE=ZS——

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND F+ZA=+—HLEEEHXE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET M2 el 28] R 2 &5 R
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RECEBESE (&)

DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RIS ARz EFRZ
SHEER
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation

of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
ERGHEUNFE R (BFIR) [EMABREX -2 AMEEKZER ] —E-——F+H—H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
BEMBREERNEI105 (455 B H#H#* —E—=%—H—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
BRMBREERNE R [BE L H ] —E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
ERUBREERE 125 [ RAMER R KE] —E—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
ERUBREERNEIIR LA ETE] —T-=%—-—H—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
BB EUNE2TR [ BB HEK] (ZT——F) —E—=F—H—H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures (2011) 1 January 2013
ERGH BTN [(REBELAIREERFE] (ZF——F) —ET-=%—-—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2013
EEMBRELENFETR (BFIR)

([ERTA HKE-KE- B EERTHERE] —E—-=%—H—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
BB GHERE 195 (KERT) [ESREF —ZET—=%—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 20, Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine 1 January 2013
EE(BERVBERERELZE])F209 [BEXBESEEEERZ FIFKK K] —E-=%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
BEAGFTEREIN (BFIA) (@I A 25— HiFeHmEERSHMEE] —ZT-mHFE—-A—H
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009)
BEAEVMBRELENESR (2 TA(ZZEZNF)]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010)
BEEMGERELNESR (2@ TA(ZT—FF)]

LRILETZ23)

40 EEMBEERRBE=—Z——

F+ZA=+—-—BHLEEXE
Mz AT EA - BRI Z BT R
REZEERE (8)

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIS BHR &R
R

1 January 2015
—ET-hF—-—H—H

1 January 2015
—E—-h%—HA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures — Mandatory effective date and transition

disclosures

1 January 2015

BEVEMEERNESE (BN (2@ TA] REEMBREETHR

[/ TR : 85— %t B H BN B K 55

The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the Group has commenced considering the potential
impact of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations but is not yet in a position
to determine whether these new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations will have a significant
impact on how the Group’s results of operations and
financial position are prepared and presented. These new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
may result in changes in the future as to how the Group’s
results and financial position are prepared and presented.

Annual Report 2011
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